
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL

Traffic and Parking Working Party

Date: Thursday, 13th September, 2018
Time: 6.00 pm

Place: Committee Room 1 - Civic Suite
Contact: Tim Row - Principal Committee Officer 

Email: committeesection@southend.gov.uk 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Minutes of the Meeting held on Thursday 21st June 2018 (Pages 1 - 4)

4  Minutes of the Meeting held on Thursday, 5th July, 2018 (Pages 5 - 6)

5  Objections to Traffic Regulation Orders (Pages 7 - 16)

6  Members Requests List (Pages 17 - 30)

7  Extension of Cliffs Pavilion Permit Parking Area (Pages 31 - 46)

8  Request for Waiting Restrictions - Earls Hall Avenue (Pages 47 - 54)

9  Hospital Area Controlled Parking Zone (Pages 55 - 64)

10  Holland Road Area - Permit Parking Proposal (Pages 65 - 72)

11  Oakwood Avenue - Request for Speed Control and Other Suggested 
Amendments to the Road Layout (Pages 73 - 80)

12  Requests for Waiting Restrictions (Pages 81 - 86)

Members:

Cllr A Moring (Chair), Cllr T Cox (Vice-Chair), Cllr A Dear, Cllr M Flewitt, Cllr D Garne, Cllr 
H McDonald, Cllr P Van Looy and Cllr C Willis

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL

Meeting of Traffic and Parking Working Party

Date: Thursday, 21st June, 2018
Place: Committee Room 1 - Civic Suite

Present: Councillor A Moring (Chair)
Councillors A Dear, M Flewitt, D Garne, L Salter*, P Van Looy, 
J Ware-Lane* and C Willis

*Substitute in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 31.

In Attendance: Councillors S Aylen, S Buckley, A Chalk, D McGlone and R Hadley
C Hindle-Terry N Hunwicks, B Frost and T Row

Start/End Time: 6.00 pm - 7.00 pm

1  Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Cox (substitute: Councillor 
Salter) and McDonald (substitute: Councillor Ware-Lane).

2  Declarations of Interest 

The following interests were declared at the meeting:

(a) Councillor Aylen – Agenda Item No. 4 (Objections to Traffic Regulation 
Orders – Belfairs Park Drive) – Non-pecuniary interest: Friends live in the area;

(b) Councillor Chalk – Agenda Item No. 5 (Requests for Traffic Restrictions – 
Gunners Road, Shoeburyness) – Non-pecuniary interest: Lives in the vicinity;

(c) Councillor Dear – Agenda Item No. 4 (Objections to Traffic Regulation Orders 
– Belfairs Park Drive) – Non-pecuniary interest: Friends live in the neighbouring 
roads;

(d) Councillor Flewitt – Agenda Item No. 5 (Requests for Traffic Restrictions - 
Eastwoodbury Crescent) – Non-pecuniary interest: Has been lobbied in respect 
of this matter;

(e) Councillor Van Looy – Agenda Item No. 4 (Objections to Traffic Regulation 
Orders – Ambleside Drive) – Friends and relatives live in the area; and

(f) Councillor Ware-Lane – Agenda Item No. 4 (Objections to Traffic Regulation 
Orders – Windsor Road and Osborne Road) – Non-pecuniary interest: Lives in 
the area.

Public Document Pack

1

3



3  Minutes of the special meeting held on 20th February 2018 

Resolved:

That the Minutes of the Special Meeting held on Tuesday 20th February 2018 be 
received and confirmed as a correct record.

4  Minutes of the Meeting held on Thursday, 8th March, 2018 

Resolved:-

That the Minutes of the Meeting held on Thursday 8th March 2018 be received 
and confirmed as a correct record.

5  Objections to Traffic Regulation Orders 

The Working Party received a report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) that 
appraised Members of the representations that had been received in response to 
the statutory consultation for proposed Traffic Regulation Orders in respect of 
various proposals within the Borough. These included:

(i) the introduction of junction protection in the roads adjoining Ambleside Drive
(ii) the introduction of one-way traffic flows and the removal of alternate monthly 
parking in Windsor Road and Osborne Road;
(iii) the introduction of a prohibition of waiting on Mondays to Fridays 10.00 a.m. 
to 12.00 noon in Belfairs Park Drive.

The report also sought an appropriate recommendation to the Cabinet 
Committee on the way forward in respect of all of these proposals, after having 
considered all of the representations that had been received in writing and at the 
meeting.  Large scale plans of the proposals were displayed at the meeting.

With reference to the proposals relating to Windsor Roads and Osborne Road, it 
was noted that the possible introduction of a residents parking permit scheme 
was being investigated.

Resolved:

That the Cabinet Committee be recommended:

1. That Deputy Chief Executive (Place) be authorised to confirm the Southend-
on-Sea Borough Council (Various Roads) (Stopping, Waiting, Loading and 
Unloading Prohibitions and Restrictions, Parking Places and Permit Parking 
Zones)(Consolidation) Order 2016 (Amendment No. 5) Order 2018, subject to the 
reduction of the restrictions from 10 metres to 5 metres in the following sections 
of the roads:

Kensington Road – From its junction with Ambleside Drive southwards
Brunswick Road – From its junction with Ambleside Drive southwards
Sandringham Road – From its junction with Ambleside Drive southwards
Marlborough Road – From its junction with Ambleside Drive southwards
Huntingdon Road – From its junction with Ambleside Drive southwards
Rutland Avenue – From its junction with Ambleside Drive southwards

2



Honiton Road – From its junction with Ambleside Drive southwards
Cheltenham Road – From its junction with Ambleside Drive southwards
Leamington Road – From its junction with Ambleside Drive southwards

2 That Deputy Chief Executive (Place) be authorised to confirm the Southend-on-
Sea Borough Council (Various Roads) (Consolidation of Moving Traffic and 
Speed Limit) Order 2006 (as amended) (Amendment No 3) Order 2018 as 
advertised.

3. That no further action be taken in respect of the proposed revocation of the 
alternative monthly waiting restrictions in Osborne Road and Windsor Road.

4. That the Southend-on-Sea Borough Council (Various Roads) (Stopping, 
Waiting, Loading and Unloading Prohibitions and Restrictions, Parking Places 
and Permit Parking Zones)(Consolidation) Order 2016 (Amendment No. 6) Order 
2018 not be confirmed and the proposals not be implemented.

6  Requests for Traffic Restrictions 

The Working Party received a report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) that 
sought Members' approval to authorise the advertisement of the amendments 
and/or new waiting restrictions at the locations indicated in Appendix 1 to the 
report, in accordance with the statutory processes and, subject to there being no 
objections received following statutory advertisement, to arrange for the relevant 
orders to be sealed and implement the proposals.

Resolved:

That Cabinet Committee be recommended that the Deputy Chief Executive 
(Place) be authorised to publish the relevant statutory notice and undertake the 
necessary consultation for a traffic regulation order(s) for the following requests 
and, subject to there being no objections following statutory advertisement, to 
arrange for the order to be sealed and the proposals implemented:

(i) Gunners Road, Shoeburyness – Amend existing limited waiting bays to 1
hour no return in 4 hours;
(ii) Eastwoodbury Crescent Service Road – Introduce permit parking; and
(iii) Chancellor Road – the revocation of the prohibition of a right turn
manoeuvre from Chancellor Road into Church Road.

3



This page is intentionally left blank

4



SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL

Meeting of Traffic and Parking Working Party

Date: Thursday, 5th July, 2018
Place: Committee Room 1 - Civic Suite

Present: Councillor A Moring (Chair)
Councillors T Cox (Vice-Chair), A Dear, M Flewitt, D Garne, 
H McDonald, P Van Looy and C Willis

In Attendance: C Hindle-Terry, N Hunwicks, B Frost and T Row

Start/End Time: 6.30 pm - 7.15 pm

1  Apologies for Absence 

There were no apologies for absence.

2  Declarations of Interest 

The following interests were declared at the meeting:

(a) Councillor Flewitt – Agenda Item No. 4 (Permanent Vehicular Crossing (PVX) 
- Exceptional Circumstances Application(s) – Application No. 17/00112) – 
Applicant’s mother is known to him; and

(b) Councillor McDonald – Agenda Item No. 4 (Permanent Vehicular Crossing 
(PVX) - Exceptional Circumstances Application(s) – Application No. 17/00112) – 
Applicant’s mother is known to her.

3  Exclusion of the Public 

Resolved:-

That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the items of business set out below, on the 
grounds that they would involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act and that the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information.

4  Permanent Vehicular Crossing (PVX) Exceptional Circumstances 
Applications 

The Working Party received a report of Deputy Chief Executive (Place) that 
appraised Members of the exceptional circumstance applications for permanent 
vehicle crossings (PVX) as set out in Appendix 1 to the report.  Some of the 
applicants attended the meeting in respect of their own application.

5

4



The report also sought an appropriate recommendation to the Cabinet 
Committee on the way forward in respect of each application, after having 
considered of all the representations that had been received in writing and at the 
meeting.

With reference to Application Ref. No. 17/00112, it was noted that a new plan 
had been submitted which indicated that the frontage of the property now 
complied with the required measurements set out in the policy.  This however, 
included an area of land that was not currently in sole ownership of the applicant.

Resolved:-

That the Cabinet Committee be recommended:

1. That, in view of the extenuating factors in relation to the individual cases, the 
following PVX exceptional circumstance applications be granted:

Application Ref. No. 18/00087
Application Ref No. 18/00133

2. That the following PVX exceptional circumstance applications be refused:

Application Ref. No. 18/00058
Application Ref. No. 18/00087

3. That consideration of Application Ref. No. 17/00112 be deferred to enable the 
applicant to resolve the issues regarding the ownership of the land adjacent to 
the applicant’s hardstanding.

6



Report Title Page 1 of 10 Report Number

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council

Report of Deputy Chief Executive (Place)
to

Traffic and Parking Working Party and Cabinet 
Committee

on
13th September 2018

Report prepared by: Peter Geraghty, 
Director for Planning and Transport

Objections to Traffic Regulation Orders

Cabinet Member : Councillor Moring
Part 1 Public Agenda Item 

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 For the Traffic and Parking Working Party and the Cabinet Committee to 
consider details of the objections to advertised Traffic Regulation Orders in 
respect of various proposals across the borough.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Traffic and Parking Working Party consider the objections to the 
proposed Orders and recommend to the Cabinet Committee to:

(a) Implement the proposals without amendment; or,
(b) Implement the proposals with amendment; or,
(c) Take no further action

2.2 That the Cabinet Committee consider the views of the Traffic and Parking 
Working Party, following consideration of the representations received 
and agree the appropriate course of action.

3. Background

3.1 The Cabinet Committee periodically agrees to advertise proposals to implement 
waiting restrictions in various areas as a result of requests from Councillors and 
members of the public based upon an assessment against the Council’s current 
policies.

3.2 The proposals shown on the attached Appendix 1 were advertised through the 
local press and notices were displayed at appropriate locations informing 
residents and businesses of the proposals and inviting them to make 

Agenda
Item No.

7

5



Report Title Page 2 of 10 Report Number

representations in respect of the proposals.  This process has resulted in the 
objections detailed in Appendix 1 of this report.  Officers have considered 
these objections and where possible tried to resolve them.  Observations are 
provided to assist Members in their considerations and in making an informed 
decision.

4. Reasons for Recommendations 

4.1 The proposals aim to improve the operation of the existing parking controls to 
contribute to highway safety and to reduce congestion.

5. Corporate Implications

5.1 Contribution to Council’s Vision & Corporate Priorities.

5.1.1 Ensuring parking and traffic is managed while maintaining adequate access for 
emergency vehicles and general traffic flow.  This is consistent with the 
Council’s Vision and Corporate Priorities of Safe, Prosperous and Healthy.

5.2 Financial Implications

5.2.1 Costs for confirmation of the Order and amendments, in Appendix 1, if 
approved, can be met from existing budgets.

5.3 Legal Implications

5.3.1 The formal statutory consultative process has been completed in accordance 
with the requirements of the legislation.

5.4 People Implications

5.4.1 Works required to implement the agreed schemes will be undertaken by 
existing staff resources.

5.5 Property Implications

5.5.1 None

5.6 Consultation

5.6.1 This report provides details of the outcome of the statutory consultation 
process.

5.7 Equalities and Diversity Implications

5.7.1 Any implications will be taken into account in designing the schemes.

8



Report Title Page 3 of 10 Report Number

5.8 Risk Assessment

5.8.1 The proposals are designed to improve the operation of the parking scheme 
while maintaining highway safety and traffic flow and as such, are likely to have 
a positive impact.

5.9 Value for Money

5.9.1 Works associated with the schemes listed in Appendix 1 will be undertaken by 
the Council’s term contractors, selected through a competitive tendering 
process to ensure value for money.

5.10 Community Safety Implications

5.10.1 The proposals in Appendix 1 if implemented will lead to improved community 
safety.

5.11 Environmental Impact

5.11.1 There is no significant environmental impact as a result of introducing the Traffic 
Regulation Orders.

6. Background Papers

6.1 None

7. Appendices

7.1 Appendix 1 - Details of representations received and Officer Observations.

9



Report Title Page 4 of 10 Report Number

 
Road Proposed 

By
Proposal Comments Officer Comment

Southchurch 
Boulevard

Members Introduce Limited 
Waiting 3 Hrs No 
Return in 4 Hrs

1 letter of objection received from the 
bridge club asking that the waiting time 
is increased to 4 hours as many of the 
members are over 80- years of age 
and a typical game lasts 3 ½ hrs and 
would result in them being unable to 
park outside the hall

The proposal was requested to 
deter all day parking and 
accommodating the users of a 
nearby facility will not detract 
from this purpose.  The 
proposal would require re-
advertisement if Members wish 
to accede to the objectors 
suggestion.

Recommend to re-advertise 
amended proposal allowing 
parking for up to 4 hours.

St Lukes 
Road

Officer Introduce No 
Waiting at Any Time 
in St Lukes Rd at its 
junct with Ely Road

1 letter of objection received – would 
not be able to park in front of property 
(though proposals are opposite the 
property); For many years the road has 
been fine as it is; would also mean 
neighbours would no longer be able to 
park in front of their properties; would 
not be enhancing but causing 
disruption to the people who reside in 
the area; If have to park elsewhere 
would cause friction with others

St Lukes Road is now one-way 
eastwards and vehicles require 
visibility of oncoming traffic.  
The proposal formalises 
guidance within the Highway 
Code to not park within 10 
metres of a junction.

Recommend to proceed with 
advertised proposals.

Eastwood 
Road North 

Member Introduce No 
Waiting at Any Time 
In Eastwood Rd 
North 15 & 12m 
either side of 
junction with 
Kenholme 

2 letters of objection and 1 letter of 
support received.   Letter of support 
thinks it’s an excellent idea 

2 letters of objection – has not seen it 
as an issue turning in and out of 
Kenholme; thinks lengths proposed are 
excessive  2m would be ok; will force 
cars to other side of road which will 
make passing more difficult especially 
for buses; has never seen problems at 
this junction; 

The proposal is designed to 
provide adequate visibility for 
vehicles exiting Kenholme.  

Recommend to proceed with 
an amended proposal of 10 
metres of junction protection 
along Eastwood Road North 
and 5 metres in Kenholme. 

Riviera Drive Member Introduce No 
Waiting 11.00 am – 
12.00 pm on south 
side between No. 76 
and 8m west of  
junction with 
Dalmatia Rd

1 letter of objection received – not 
allowing parking for one hour a day is 
beyond ridiculous; are residents going 
to be issued with parking permits to 
negate the issue

While the proposal is designed 
to deter all day parking in these 
newly created parking bays, 
residents will no longer be able 
to benefit from parking unless 
they are able to move their 
vehicle during the prohibited 
time.  

Recommend no further 
action.

10



Report Title Page 5 of 10 Report Number

Road Proposed 
By

Proposal Comments Officer Comment

Hartington 
Road Area
Parking 
Management 
Scheme

Member Waiting Restrictions, 
Parking Places
& Permit Parking Zone

1 letter of objection 31 letters of 
support
Letter of objection – feels that the 
criteria for a scheme needs 
amending as only 40% voted for the 
proposal; small guest house with no 
off street parking as criteria changed 
for crossover so has to park on road 
and walk supplies in; would not get a 
residents permit as not actual 
residence and would place business 
in jeopardy; Area is designated as 
“seafront visitor area” and supported 
by council rather than to discourage; 
why are smaller guest houses 
penalised against a larger guest 
houses, the criteria should be 
changed so it is resident and/or 
owner can apply for permits 
Letters of support – needs to be 
sorted out  especially since Seaway 
is going; welcome residents parking 
as carer/friends will be able to park; 
residents parking is needed as 
cannot park when coming home 
from work; will relieve the parking 
problems; please proceed with this; 
totally in favour; Definitely need 
Pleasant Road included in the 
scheme to allow residents to park; 
needed as surround areas have 
permit parking; glad we are 
introducing scheme; please fix the 
problems by introducing the scheme; 
full and total agreement to the 
scheme; highly in favour; will have a 
huge positive impact on lives; will 
make life so much easier;                  

The permit parking proposal 
resulted from a successful 
survey undertaken by the ward 
Member and residents 
demonstrating the required 
levels of support for controls to 
be proposed.

While the comments from the 
objector are understood, this is 
a primarily residential area 
where the majority of residents 
have to rely on parking on the 
street as little off street parking 
potential is available. Any 
owner occupiers of guest 
houses in the streets will be 
eligible for resident permits and 
for non-resident owners, a 
business permit could be 
purchased to enable parking.   

The proposal does include a 
small area of shared permit and 
pay and display parking and 
the introduction of the scheme 
will coincide with an additional 
20 pay and display bays being 
provided in Lucy Road within 
the former taxi rank with this 
area reverting to a taxi rank late 
at night when the area is busy 
due to the proximity of the 
clubs in this street.

Given the levels of support 
expressed, recommend to 
proceed with the advertised 
proposal.

Station Road 
Westcliff-on-
Sea

Officer Introduce Limited 
Waiting 1 Hr No 
Return in 4 Hrs

3 letters received 1 support –since 
the Cliffs scheme came in there 
has been a downturn in business, 
so this proposal will help the 
shops in the vicinity of the 
proposed bay.
2 objection – lives above shops 
and uses the bay for parking as 
there is no other parking area 
available.

The proposal is designed to 
provide customer parking.  both 
objectors are eligible for 
permits in the scheme should 
they wish to apply.

Recommend to proceed with 
advertised proposal.

11



Report Title Page 6 of 10 Report Number

Road Proposed 
By

Proposal Comments Officer Comment

Bailey Road 
Area 
Residents 
Parking 
Scheme

Residents 
Petition

Prohibition Of 
Waiting at junctions 

introduction of 
Permit Parking 

Controls

34 letters of objection and 1 Petition 
from local Solicitor with 577 
signatures – 15 of the representations 
list their main concern as the viability of 
businesses in the area.   There is 
limited parking on London Road and 
therefore employers and customers 
often use the side roads for parking.  
They also state that many properties 
have adequate off-street parking.

5 letters have been received from flats 
above the shops in London Road; they 
have no off-street parking and 
therefore rely on the side roads for 
parking.

3 letters mention the difficulties the 
scheme will cause to patients at a 
large Doctors surgery and Dentist in 
London Road.  There is insufficient off-
street spaces within the Doctors 
practice and the Dentist has little or no 
customer parking.

Other comments mention that the 
scheme will cause a knock on effect to 
roads south of London Road which are 
already suffering parking stress and 
other areas are more deserving.

The area should be extended to the 
east to deal with the problems caused 
by staff of Belfairs Academy and 5 
letters offer no perceived problems or 
no comments

The proposal is a result of a 
successful resident led survey 
requesting parking controls to 
remove all day parking from 
their streets.  While the majority 
of residents do have off street 
parking provision, many 
families have more than one 
car and rely on parking on 
street and this can be difficult 
given all day parking by local 
workers.   Along with permit 
parking controls, proposals to 
provide waiting restrictions at a 
number of currently 
unprotected junctions was also 
included within the proposal.

Significant opposition has been 
received to the permit parking 
proposals however, the petition 
submitted appears to include 
high levels of staff from a 
number of businesses who 
likely utilise the side streets for 
all day parking as well as 
signatures from businesses 
some distance from the 
proposal.   as residents 
demonstrated support for 
parking controls, 

Photographs of the streets are 
shown below and demonstrate 
the levels of parking in these 
streets.  Members are asked to 
consider to ;

Agree the proposed parking 
controls and junction 
protection measures as 
advertised.

OR

Agree to the implementation 
of waiting restrictions around 
currently unprotected 
junctions only

OR

Take no further action on any 
of the proposals
 

12



Report Title Page 7 of 10 Report Number

Eaton Road

Barnard Road

Bailey Road

13



Report Title Page 8 of 10 Report Number

Sydney Road

Gordon Road

14



Report Title Page 9 of 10 Report Number

Stirling Ave

15



Report Title Page 10 of 10 Report Number

Olive Ave

16



Members Request List
 

Page 1 of 3 Report No:  10/130 

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Report of Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

to
Traffic and Parking Working Party and

Cabinet Committee
on

13th September 2018

Report prepared by: Peter Geraghty
Director of Planning and Transport 

Members Requests List

Cabinet Member – Councillor Moring 
A Part 1 Public Agenda Item

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 For the Traffic and Parking Working Party & Cabinet Committee to receive, note 
and consider new “Member’s Requests” and Officers’ recommendations as 
detailed in Appendix 1 of this report.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Traffic and Parking and the Cabinet Committee consider the views of 
the Working Party and Officer recommendations on each of the proposals as 
detailed in Appendix 1 to this report, and agree:

a) To proceed with Officers’ recommendations; or,
b) To proceed with Officers’ recommendations; or,
c) To take no further action.
d) That all agreed actions will be added to the existing work programme and 

progressed in order of approval unless members have indicated higher 
priority.

3. Background

3.1     Members may formally request highway and traffic improvement works to be 
considered.  These requests vary from minor traffic, road safety and parking 
initiatives and may include new pedestrian crossing facilities, traffic speed, road 
safety and residents parking schemes.

3.2 Officers receive and add all such requests to the “Members list” and report 
these back to the Traffic & Parking Working Party and the Cabinet Committee.  
Any recommendations agreed will then become part of the work programme.  
Officers’ initial recommendations are based on limited findings of the 
investigation and/or the outcome of surveys/consultations where possible.  If the 
Working Party/Cabinet Committee agree for items to be further investigated, 
updates will be presented to future Traffic and Parking Working Party & Cabinet 
Committee meetings for consideration and decision, as and when they become 
available. 

Agenda
Item No.

17

6



Members Request List
 

Page 2 of 3 Report No:  10/130 

3.3 The Committee is aware of the increasing workload resulting from “Members 
Requests”.  This is a small team with limited financial and staffing resources to 
address all requests which require extensive investigations in most cases.  As 
such there is a need to prioritise these on the basis of impact on safety, 
accessibility and traffic flows and programmed against the limited budget and 
staffing available to undertake necessary investigations to deliver these in the 
most efficient way.

3.4 It needs to be noted that once a formal conclusion has been reached on the 
individual items, to the agreement of the Traffic and Parking Working Group & 
the Cabinet Committee, these will be removed from the list and where 
appropriate, added to the work programme.  In such cases, the Working Party 
and the Cabinet Committee is asked to agree future prioritisation of each of the 
items on the basis of impact on safety and accessibility.

3.5 Officers will update Members of the progress of their individual requests and will 
inform them of the findings, investigations, the recommendations and reasons 
thereof, as well as the decisions made by this Committee.

4. Reasons for Recommendations 

4.1  To provide a rationalised and consistent management and decision-making 
process for all formal requests for highways and traffic management 
improvements by Ward Councillors via the Traffic and Parking Working Party & 
Cabinet Committee. 

6. Corporate Implications

6.1 Contribution to Council’s Vision & Corporate Priorities 

The Members Requests List is a mechanism for Ward Councillors to request 
issues within their wards which they believe may be a safety hazard and 
improving traffic flow contributes to a Safe and Prosperous Southend.

 
6.2 Financial Implications 

Requests which are recommended for any action will be funded via existing 
budgetary resources.  However, the resources are limited and the Working 
Party and the Cabinet Committee has an ongoing agreed priority programme 
based on its earlier decisions.  Unless the Committee agrees to allocate a 
priority for the new requests, these will be added to the bottom of the list and 
undertaken subject to availability of financial and staffing resources.
 

6.3 Legal Implications

Where requests involve any requirement for a Traffic Regulation Order, the 
relevant statutory procedures will be followed including the requirement for 
formal consultation with affected frontagers’ and advertisement in the local 
press.

18



Members Request List
 

Page 3 of 3 Report No:  10/130 

6.4 People Implications 

There are limitations in staff time and an increase in Members’ requests can 
place additional strain on limited resources which may lead to delays in 
investigations and reporting back to the Working Party and the Cabinet Sub 
Committee.

6.5 Property Implications

None

6.6 Consultation

Formal and informal consultation will be carried out, as required, and directed 
by this Committee.  In addition all Ward Councillors are to be informed of the 
consultation process prior to its commencement.

7. Background Papers

None

8 Appendices

8.1   Appendix 1 - list of current requests 
  Appendix 2 – Maya Close update 
  Appendix 3 – Maya Close independent safety audit report

19



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

September 2018
1

----------

MEMBERS REQUESTS LIST FOR HIGHWAYS, TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT AND PARKING SCHEMES

Note: Cabinet Committee in January 2016 agreed the following criterion for dealing with requests of waiting restrictions:-

Waiting Restrictions

These will only be considered if one of the following criteria is met;

1) Where a road safety problem has been identified by collision studies (3 Personal injury accidents in 3 years) and it is clear that an actual 
reduction in collisions may follow the introduction of such an Order.

2) Where evidence of the obstruction of the highway or visibility at junctions occurs on a frequent and severe basis, causing particular 
difficulties for emergency service vehicles and/or public transport.

3) Where commerce and industry are seriously affected by presence of parked vehicles.

4) Where the installation of TROs is essential to provide maximum benefit from capital investment.

5) On strategic routes and major distributors appropriate waiting and loading restrictions can be used to ensure that adequate road space is 
available for moving traffic.

6) Cost of schemes and likely savings through accident reduction need to be part of priority consideration.

7) Waiting restrictions are not to be provided for protecting private accesses or in isolated areas where resulting displaced parking is likely 

21



Appendix 1

September 2018
2

Reference 
Number

Date 1st 
Reported 

(Month/Year)

Ward Member Subject of Request Update

17/35 October 2017 Cllrs Cox And 
Jarvis

Introduce accident prevention measures  Maya 
Close and Ness Road

Considered in March 2018, update provide d at Appendices 2 and 
3 

17/46 Mar 2018 Cllr Philips One Hour Waiting restrictions in Thames Close 
to deter commuter parking – request supported 
by all residents of Thames Close

Does not meet criteria relating to waiting restrictions or parking 
controls to deter non- residential parking.  The request is contrary 
to the agreed policy regarding the introduction of waiting 
restrictions and could lead to displaced parking.  Parking controls 
designed to deter non-resident parking should be part of an area 
wide solution to avoid moving vehicles into adjacent roads.  

Recommend officers support ward members to undertake the 
necessary surveys within the wider area.

September 2018 update.  Ward Members are considering 
surveys in the wider area encompassing two wards.  Further 
discussion is planned.

18/01 May 2018 Cllr Woodley Introduce waiting restrictions Colbert Avenue 
opposite junctions.

This request is similar to previous requests over the last two years 
which have resulted in no further action following consultation 
with residents.  Waiting restrictions opposite a junction are not 
provided unless the road is exceptionally narrow and affects 
turning manoeuvres out of the junction.  The road is a standard 
width and manoeuvring should not be an issue.  

Recommend no further action 

22



Appendix 1

September 2018
3

Reference 
Number

Date 1st 
Reported 

(Month/Year)

Ward Member Subject of Request Update

18/02 May 2018 Cllr Habermel Introduce waiting restriction in Crosby Road to 
reduce congestion.

Crosby Road is an east to west route from Crowstone Road 
terminating at a signal controlled crossroad junction at Chalkwell 
Avenue.  The road is of sufficient width to accommodate two side 
parking but this arrangement results in single file traffic only.  
While the street is not designated as a distributor route, the 
levels of traffic using the street results in vehicles having to find 
sufficient roadside space to pull over and allow oncoming traffic 
to pass.  The majority of the parking is attributed to commuters 
using the railway station. 

While the request does not meet the agreed criteria for the 
introduction of waiting restrictions, the levels of traffic using the 
street and the resulting congestion is of concern.  The provision of 
waiting restrictions will allow for passing places and reduce 
congestion.  

Recommend Members consider the request as an exception to 
the agreed criteria due to the congestion and potential 
emissions resulting from traffic having to give way. 

18/03 May 2018 Cllr Arscott Amend waiting restrictions Victoria Road Leigh, 
reduce junction protection and alter one side 
restriction to opposite side 

The proposal is designed to create additional parking in this area 
subject to high parking demands and is not subject to the agreed 
criteria.

Recommend to advertise the proposal.
18/04 May 2018 Cllr Van Looey Box Junction Cokefield Avenue/Hamstel Road No rationale for the request has been provided however, box 

junctions are suitable for use at signal controlled junctions or 
where heavy traffic flows are present on both arms of the 
junction.  Cokefield Avenue is a minor route joining Hamstel Road 
which is designated as a distributor route.  Traffic on a distributor 
route should have priority over traffic from minor routes.
Recommend no further action.

23



Appendix 1

September 2018
4

Reference 
Number

Date 1st 
Reported 

(Month/Year)

Ward Member Subject of Request Update

18/05 June 2018 West Leigh 
Members

London Road, Boundary to Highlands 
Boulevard.  Amend limited waiting time to 2 
hours.

The current waiting limit is 1 hour and some business could 
attract customers requiring a longer stay.  No criteria required to 
amend waiting times in existing limited waiting parking areas.

Recommend to advertise proposal.
18/06 June 2018 West Leigh 

Members
Highlands Boulevard/Herschell Road junction 
with London Road.  Provide peak hour 
restriction on one side of the road to deter 
congestion at the junction.

The junction does become congested and the very small area of 
unrestricted parking on the west side of the street exacerbates this.   

Recommend Members consider the request as an exception to 
the agreed criteria due to the congestion and agree to propose 
peak hour waiting restrictions on the west side of the road.

18/07 July 2018 Cllr Woodley Provide SLOW signs, The Broadway. SLOW road markings are provided in The Broadway approaching 
each junction.  Signage with the wording “SLOW” is not a permitted 
traffic sign and therefore not authorised to be placed on the traffic 
network.

Recommend no further action.
18/08 July 2018 Cllr Woodley Provide at any time waiting restrictions, Thorpe 

Hall Avenue, Acacia Drive.
Does not meet criteria.  At any time waiting restrictions are 
provided around the junction for a distance of 22 metres from the 
extended kerbline of Acacia Drive.  A waiting restriction operational 
from 2pm to 3pm Monday to Friday is in place to deter all day 
parking.    There is no reported congestion at the junction due to 
parked vehicles.  

Recommend that the location be monitored periodically and if 
congestion at the junction is witnessed, the existing waiting 
restriction prohibiting parking at any time be extended for 10 
metres northwards.  

24



Appendix 3 – Members Request List

Southend on Sea Borough Council
Department for Place – Analysis of Members Request 

    
                                                                                                       Appendix 3 Members Request List

Maya Close

Background

An accident occurred in 2015, which sadly resulted in the death of a motorcyclist.  The 
motorcyclist was travelling along Ness Road when a vehicle exited Maya Close.  Councillors 
have requested consideration be given to introducing a mandatory left turn from Maya 
Close into Ness Road to prevent future accidents at this junction.

The accident data compiled by the Police states that the driver of the vehicle failed to look 
properly.  There are no indications that the rider of the motorcycle was travelling at an 
inappropriate speed.

Observations

The junction is a staggered crossroad layout with junction protection on all arms of the 
crossroads.  A small convenience store is located on the eastern side of the junction and a 
planter area to the boundary of this property could be impeding visibility of approaching 
traffic.

A further issue noted during observation was short term parking on the area of double 
yellow lines outside the convenience store.

Recommendation

There appears to be little benefit in restricting traffic movement from this junction.  Vehicles 
exiting left into Ness Road from Maya Close will still require visibility of southbound traffic 
therefore restricting the movement to left turn only would not prevent future similar 
accidents.

Consideration is being given to build outs bringing the junction further into Ness Road and 
preventing illegal parking.  Ness Road is a Primary Distributor Route accommodating large 
vehicles throughout the day and there are concerns that any narrowing of the carriageway 
could impede traffic flows.  Proposals are being designed and will be assessed by an 
independent safety auditor.

It is recommended that pending the outcome of the independent assessment, officers 
discuss the planters with the convenience store and request that any foliage is maintained 
at a minimum level to maintain visibility.

25



Appendix 3 – Members Request List

In the event that a build-out would not impede larger vehicles and the safety assessment 
indicates it is appropriate to do so, the build-out will be programmed for the coming 
financial year.

September 2018 Update 

The site has been assessed by an independent road safety auditor with a recommendation 
to ;

Provide junction ahead warning signs (staggered) on both approaches to the junction 
in conjunction with ‘SLOW’ road markings. Provide a build-out to bring forward the 
give-way line for Maya Close.  Support these remedial measures with relocating the 
bin, trimming the vegetation and monitoring the non-compliance with parking 
restrictions.

The full report is provided.  

26



 

 

Technical note - Maya Close jw Ness Road.docx 1 

Technical note 
 

Project: Southend-on-Sea Road Safety 
Services  

To: Adrian Watling  

Subject: Maya Road junction with A13 
Ness Road  

From: Samantha Moores 

Date: 5 Apr 2018 cc:  Mark Gregory 

 

MAYA CLOSE / WATERLOO ROAD JUNCTION WITH A13 NESS ROAD, SHOEBURYNESS  

Introduction 

Atkins were requested to undertake an accident investigation of the A13 Ness Road / Maya Close 
junction following a fatal accident in 2015 and local concerns. 

Accident Summary: 

Search period – 1st November 2007 to 31st October 2017 

During the 10-year study period 3 personal injury accidents occurred within a 50m radius of the 
junction of Maya Close with A13 Ness Road (which consequently includes the junction with Waterloo 
Road).  

These accidents resulted in 1 fatal accident, 1 serious injury accident and 1 slight injury accident, 
giving a severity ratio of 66.6%.  

All 3 accidents occurred on a dry road surface and during the hours of daylight.  

Two of the accidents involved motorcyclists.  

One accident occurred in 2009, 1 in 2012 and 1 in 2015.  

Accident details: 

1. Accident occurred on Thursday 5th November 2009 at 07:10 and resulted in slight injury. A 
car turned out of Waterloo Road across the path of a motorcyclist who was travelling north 
on Ness Road. There was another car parked on the west kerb of Ness Road which 
reportedly obstructed the visibility between the car and the motorcyclist. The motorcyclist 
incurred slight injuries.  

 
2. Accident occurred on Tuesday 9th October 2012 at 16:00 and resulted in serious injury. A car 

was travelling southbound on Ness Road when a child pedestrian (age 10) ran into the road 
from the east kerb and was hit by the car. The pedestrian sustained serious injury.  

 
3. Accident occurred on Wednesday 11th November 2015 at 13:35 and resulted in a fatality. A 

car turned right out of Maya Close onto Ness Road and hit a motorcyclist who was travelling 
southbound on Ness Road.  

 

Site visit observations:  

The site was visited on Thursday 29th March 2018 at approximately 10:00. Multiple vehicles were 
observed parking on the double yellow lines to the north of Maya Close on the eastern side of Ness 
Road during the site visit. This restricted visibility to the right for road users exiting Maya Close. This 
visibility was further reduced by the right-hand bend and the litter bin located next to the brick built 
planted area.  

27



 

 

Technical note - Maya Close jw Ness Road.docx 2 

Technical note 
Visibility to the left was restricted to some extent by parked vehicles.  Some of Ness Road to the 
south of Maya Close was coned off meaning that visibility was slightly better than might otherwise 
be expected. 

The images below show the view to the right when exiting Maya Close restricted by parked vehicles, 
the bin and planting and also the view southbound on Ness Road approaching Maya Close.   

 

Image 1 – view to right exiting Maya Close 

 

Image 2 – view southbound along Ness Road approaching Maya Close 

 

 

 

28



 

 

Technical note - Maya Close jw Ness Road.docx 3 

Technical note 
Options for remedial measures: 

The following options have been considered for this junction. Each measure has been briefly 
assessed in terms of potential accident savings, cost and suitability for the junction in question.  

1. Junction ahead warning signs – provide a staggered junction ahead warning sign on each 
approach to the junction on Ness Road. This measure would be relatively low cost and 
relevant to accidents 1 and 3.  

2. Build-out at junction – provide a build-out to bring forward the give-way line from Maya Close 
to improve visibility. This measure would be relevant to accidents 2 and 3.  

3. Ban right turn from Maya Close – this measure would be difficult to enforce and there are no 
opportunities nearby for road users to safely undertake a U-turn which would further reduce 
the compliance with the banned manoeuvre. This measure would be relevant to accident 3 
only. Furthermore, the straight-ahead movement would not be banned and two-wheeled 
vehicles could still be hit road users travelling from Maya Close to Waterloo Road in a similar 
fashion to motorcyclist. 

4. Provide mini-roundabout – would require more extensive changes to the road layout at higher 
cost, relevant to accidents 1 and 3.  Four-arm mini-roundabouts tend to have high accident 
rates so accident savings may not be obtained.  

5. ‘SLOW’ road markings – provide ‘SLOW’ road markings adjacent to the junction ahead 
warning signs. This measure would be relatively low cost and would support the signing.  

6. Parking enforcement – monitor non-compliance of parking restrictions in the vicinity of Maya 
Close / Waterloo Road. Provide enforcement to deter unsafe parking.  

7. Relocate street furniture – relocate the litter bin to the other side of the brick built planter to 
improve visibility to the right from Maya Close. This measure would be low cost and relevant 
to accident 3.  

8. Trim vegetation in planter – at the time of the site visit (early spring) the vegetation in the 
planter did not restrict visibility from the junction. However, with spring /summer growth this 
could also impinge visibility. This measure is low cost and relevant to accident 3.  

9. Add ‘Think Bike’ Posters for road users leaving Maya Close for a limited period. 

 

Conclusions 

The Ness Road/Maya Close/Waterloo Road junction had a low accident rate (0.3 per year) but high 
severity (two of the three accidents had killed or seriously injured casualties). Two of the three 
accidents involved motorcyclists.  An analysis of the accidents together with a site visit has 
determined various options. 

 

Recommended package of remedial measures: 

Provide junction ahead warning signs (staggered) on both approaches to the junction in conjunction 
with ‘SLOW’ road markings. Provide a build-out to bring forward the give-way line for Maya Close. 
Support these remedial measures with relocating the bin, trimming the vegetation and monitoring 
the non-compliance with parking restrictions.  

 

 

29



This page is intentionally left blank



Report Title Page 1 of 7 Report Number

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council

Report of Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

to
Traffic and Parking Working Party and Cabinet 

Committee
on

13th September 2018

Report prepared by: Peter Geraghty, 
Director for Planning and Transport

Cliffs Pavilion Extension 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Moring
Part 1 Public Agenda Item 

1. Purpose of Report

1.1For the Traffic and Parking Working Party and the Cabinet Committee to authorise 
the advertisement of amendments to the existing Permit Parking Area to the east of 
the Cliffs Pavilion.  

2. Recommendation

2.1. That the Traffic and Parking Working Party and the Cabinet Committee:-

a) Consider the requests to advertise the amendments to the existing 
Traffic Regulation Order;

b) If approved, further agree that in the event of there being no objections 
to the proposals, the Traffic Regulation Order be confirmed;

c) Note that all unresolved objections will be referred to the Traffic and 
Parking Working Party for consideration.

3. Background

3.1 The Permit Parking Area to the east of the Cliffs Pavilion was implemented in 
May 2018 and while it is generally recommended that a review of parking 
arrangements be undertaken after 6 months of operation, there are large areas of 
under-utilised parking within the area which could accommodate visitors to the 
Theatre and other attractions nearby.  While parking is available in the nearby 
Shorefield Road Car Park, this is often full early in the evening if a popular show 
is playing.  Western Esplanade generally has spaces available but involves us of 
the stairs and path up to the Cliffs Pavilion. 

Agenda
Item No.

31

7



Report Title Page 2 of 7 Report Number

3.2 At present, the parking is set out to include designated areas of Permit Holder 
parking bays only and these areas accommodate residents, limited numbers of 
businesses and hotel guest parking with controls operating from 11am to 9pm 
daily.

3.3 As daytime parking has decreased with commuters and town centre workers no 
longer parking in the area and preventing residents from parking near to their 
homes, areas of parking availability remain empty. The purpose of the project 
was to ensure residents have priority over parking within the area and this has 
been achieved but leaving large areas unoccupied is displacing parking into 
adjacent streets.

3.4 This parking pressure can be reduced by allowing non-resident parking in some 
of the streets within the area. This parking could accommodate visitors to the 
Theatre.

3.5 The area has been monitored and the areas shown at Appendix 1 to this report 
identifies these under used areas.

3.6 It is recommended that these areas are proposed to be shared pay and display 
parking areas or resident permit holders and subject to the charges set out in 
Appendix 2 to this report.

  
3.7 This would not apply to all parking availability in the streets detailed but a 

proportion only to ensure residents are not disadvantaged.

3.8 In addition, the south side of Clifftown Parade is currently subject to a waiting 
restriction prohibiting waiting from March to October.  Outside of these times, the 
area is available for parking and could therefore be utilised year round as a 
shared area.

3.9 In the short term, the recommended payment method is pay by phone only.  
Usage and any resulting issues will be assessed and if justified, pay and display 
machines can be provided at a cost of £5,500.00 each provided and installed.

4. Other Options

4.1 Retain the current arrangements.  This option would retain under-utilised areas of 
the streets while parking pressure is placed on adjacent areas. Members may 
consider taking no further action if they feel it is appropriate.

5. Reasons for Recommendations

5.1 To accommodate non-resident parking in a popular area which appears to be 
under-utilised by residents.

32



Report Title Page 3 of 7 Report Number

6. Corporate Implications

6.1 Contribution to Council’s Vision & Corporate Priorities

6.1.1 Ensure the highway network is effectively managed contributing to a Safe and 
Prosperous Southend.

6.2 Financial Implications

6.2.1 The source of funding will be from allocated budgets, where funding is provided 
from alternative budgets, this is highlighted as appropriate.  Income will be 
generated from this proposal however, there is a high likelihood that a majority of 
spaces will be utilised by blue badge holders and therefore minimal.  

6.3 Legal Implications

6.3.1 The formal statutory consultative process will be completed in accordance with 
the requirements of the legislation where applicable.

6.4 People Implications

6.4.1 Staff time will be required to organise the advertisement procedures and monitor 
the progress of the proposals.

6.5 Property Implications

6.5.1 None

6.6 Consultation

6.6.1 Formal consultation will be undertaken including advertisement of the proposal in 
the local press and on the street as appropriate.

6.7 Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.7.1 The objectives of providing additional parking takes account of all users of the 
public highway including those with disabilities.

6.8 Risk Assessment

6.8.1 Neutral.

6.9 Value for Money

6.9.1 All works resulting from the scheme design are to be undertaken by term 
contractors appointed through a competitive tendering process.

6.10 Community Safety Implications

6.10.1 The proposal is designed to allocate additional public parking which contributes 
to community safety by increasing footfall in an area.   

33



Report Title Page 4 of 7 Report Number

6.11 Environmental Impact

6.11.1 Additional parking bays on street can reduce the requirement for vehicles to 
travel repeatedly along the roads seeking parking.  This will reduce congestion 
and emissions within the area.  

7. Background papers

None

8. Appendices

Appendix 1 Plan of areas identified as under-utilised

Appendix 2 Proposed charging structure

34



Report Title Page 5 of 7 Report Number

Appendix 1 

The area was monitored on several occasions on a weekday and weekend 
during the afternoon and early evening.

The spaces in each street have been calculated and vehicles counted, the 
column showing the number of vehicles parked details the highest number of 
vehicles seen in the street on the days the area was monitored during July and 
August. 

Vehicles parked included;

Residents with permits
Hotel Guests using the hotel permits
Blue Badge Holders on yellow lines

Additional 126 parking spaces identified.

Street Spaces Used Available
Westcliff Parade 98 71 27
Scratton Road 18 9 9
Cambridge Road 63 27 36

Clifftown Parade (Prittlewell Square westwards) 41 27 14
Clifftown Parade (Prittlewell Square westwards) 
removing single yellow line 40 0 40

35



Report Title Page 6 of 7 Report Number

36



Report Title Page 7 of 7 Report Number

Appendix 2

Price Comparisons

Town Centre/Clifftown 
Area  

Shorefield Road 
Car Park  

Cliffs Pavilion 
Car Park  

9am to 6pm  9am to 9pm  7am to 7pm  
up to 30 minutes £1.00 up to 2 hours £2.00 30 Mins 20p
up to 1 hour £1.70 up to 4 hours £4.50 2 Hrs £1.50
up to 2 hours £3.30 up to 6 hours £6.60 3 Hrs £4.00
up to 3 hours £5.00 over 6 hours £8.00 4 Hrs £4.80
up to 4 hours £6.50 5 Hrs  + £8.00
up to 5 hours £8.30
up to 6 hours £10.00
up to 7 hours £11.50
up to 8 hours £13.20
8 + hours £14.20

In order to not encourage migration from car parks nearby by providing cheaper 
parking, it is suggested that we provide 3 payment bands ; 

up to 3 hours £4.00

up to 6 hours £7.00

over 6 hours  £10.00

income potential is difficult to identify as the area will likely be heavily used by 
badge holders who park free of charge.

37



This page is intentionally left blank



Report Title Page 1 of 7 Report Number

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council

Report of Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

to
Traffic and Parking Working Party and Cabinet 

Committee
on

13th September 2018

Report prepared by: Peter Geraghty, 
Director for Planning and Transport

Cliffs Pavilion Extension 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Moring
Part 1 Public Agenda Item 

1. Purpose of Report

1.1For the Traffic and Parking Working Party and the Cabinet Committee to authorise 
the advertisement of amendments to the existing Permit Parking Area to the east of 
the Cliffs Pavilion.  

2. Recommendation

2.1. That the Traffic and Parking Working Party and the Cabinet Committee:-

a) Consider the requests to advertise the amendments to the existing 
Traffic Regulation Order;

b) If approved, further agree that in the event of there being no objections 
to the proposals, the Traffic Regulation Order be confirmed;

c) Note that all unresolved objections will be referred to the Traffic and 
Parking Working Party for consideration.

3. Background

3.1 The Permit Parking Area to the east of the Cliffs Pavilion was implemented in 
May 2018 and while it is generally recommended that a review of parking 
arrangements be undertaken after 6 months of operation, there are large areas of 
under-utilised parking within the area which could accommodate visitors to the 
Theatre and other attractions nearby.  While parking is available in the nearby 
Shorefield Road Car Park, this is often full early in the evening if a popular show 
is playing.  Western Esplanade generally has spaces available but involves us of 
the stairs and path up to the Cliffs Pavilion. 

Agenda
Item No.

39



Report Title Page 2 of 7 Report Number

3.2 At present, the parking is set out to include designated areas of Permit Holder 
parking bays only and these areas accommodate residents, limited numbers of 
businesses and hotel guest parking with controls operating from 11am to 9pm 
daily.

3.3 As daytime parking has decreased with commuters and town centre workers no 
longer parking in the area and preventing residents from parking near to their 
homes, areas of parking availability remain empty. The purpose of the project 
was to ensure residents have priority over parking within the area and this has 
been achieved but leaving large areas unoccupied is displacing parking into 
adjacent streets.

3.4 This parking pressure can be reduced by allowing non-resident parking in some 
of the streets within the area. This parking could accommodate visitors to the 
Theatre.

3.5 The area has been monitored and the areas shown at Appendix 1 to this report 
identifies these under used areas.

3.6 It is recommended that these areas are proposed to be shared pay and display 
parking areas or resident permit holders and subject to the charges set out in 
Appendix 2 to this report.

  
3.7 This would not apply to all parking availability in the streets detailed but a 

proportion only to ensure residents are not disadvantaged.

3.8 In addition, the south side of Clifftown Parade is currently subject to a waiting 
restriction prohibiting waiting from March to October.  Outside of these times, the 
area is available for parking and could therefore be utilised year round as a 
shared area.

3.9 In the short term, the recommended payment method is pay by phone only.  
Usage and any resulting issues will be assessed and if justified, pay and display 
machines can be provided at a cost of £5,500.00 each provided and installed.

4. Other Options

4.1 Retain the current arrangements.  This option would retain under-utilised areas of 
the streets while parking pressure is placed on adjacent areas. Members may 
consider taking no further action if they feel it is appropriate.

5. Reasons for Recommendations

5.1 To accommodate non-resident parking in a popular area which appears to be 
under-utilised by residents.

40



Report Title Page 3 of 7 Report Number

6. Corporate Implications

6.1 Contribution to Council’s Vision & Corporate Priorities

6.1.1 Ensure the highway network is effectively managed contributing to a Safe and 
Prosperous Southend.

6.2 Financial Implications

6.2.1 The source of funding will be from allocated budgets, where funding is provided 
from alternative budgets, this is highlighted as appropriate.  Income will be 
generated from this proposal however, there is a high likelihood that a majority of 
spaces will be utilised by blue badge holders and therefore minimal.  

6.3 Legal Implications

6.3.1 The formal statutory consultative process will be completed in accordance with 
the requirements of the legislation where applicable.

6.4 People Implications

6.4.1 Staff time will be required to organise the advertisement procedures and monitor 
the progress of the proposals.

6.5 Property Implications

6.5.1 None

6.6 Consultation

6.6.1 Formal consultation will be undertaken including advertisement of the proposal in 
the local press and on the street as appropriate.

6.7 Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.7.1 The objectives of providing additional parking takes account of all users of the 
public highway including those with disabilities.

6.8 Risk Assessment

6.8.1 Neutral.

6.9 Value for Money

6.9.1 All works resulting from the scheme design are to be undertaken by term 
contractors appointed through a competitive tendering process.

6.10 Community Safety Implications

6.10.1 The proposal is designed to allocate additional public parking which contributes 
to community safety by increasing footfall in an area.   

41



Report Title Page 4 of 7 Report Number

6.11 Environmental Impact

6.11.1 Additional parking bays on street can reduce the requirement for vehicles to 
travel repeatedly along the roads seeking parking.  This will reduce congestion 
and emissions within the area.  

7. Background papers

None

8. Appendices

Appendix 1 Plan of areas identified as under-utilised

Appendix 2 Proposed charging structure

42



Report Title Page 5 of 7 Report Number

Appendix 1 

The area was monitored on several occasions on a weekday and weekend 
during the afternoon and early evening.

The spaces in each street have been calculated and vehicles counted, the 
column showing the number of vehicles parked details the highest number of 
vehicles seen in the street on the days the area was monitored during July and 
August. 

Vehicles parked included;

Residents with permits
Hotel Guests using the hotel permits
Blue Badge Holders on yellow lines

Additional 126 parking spaces identified.

Street Spaces Used Available
Westcliff Parade 98 71 27
Scratton Road 18 9 9
Cambridge Road 63 27 36

Clifftown Parade (Prittlewell Square westwards) 41 27 14
Clifftown Parade (Prittlewell Square westwards) 
removing single yellow line 40 0 40

43



Report Title Page 6 of 7 Report Number

44



Report Title Page 7 of 7 Report Number

Appendix 2

Price Comparisons

Town Centre/Clifftown 
Area  

Shorefield Road 
Car Park  

Cliffs Pavilion 
Car Park  

9am to 6pm  9am to 9pm  7am to 7pm  
up to 30 minutes £1.00 up to 2 hours £2.00 30 Mins 20p
up to 1 hour £1.70 up to 4 hours £4.50 2 Hrs £1.50
up to 2 hours £3.30 up to 6 hours £6.60 3 Hrs £4.00
up to 3 hours £5.00 over 6 hours £8.00 4 Hrs £4.80
up to 4 hours £6.50 5 Hrs  + £8.00
up to 5 hours £8.30
up to 6 hours £10.00
up to 7 hours £11.50
up to 8 hours £13.20
8 + hours £14.20

In order to not encourage migration from car parks nearby by providing cheaper 
parking, it is suggested that we provide 3 payment bands ; 

up to 3 hours £4.00

up to 6 hours £7.00

over 6 hours  £10.00

income potential is difficult to identify as the area will likely be heavily used by 
badge holders who park free of charge.

45



This page is intentionally left blank



Report Title Page 1 of 3 Report Number

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council

Report of Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

to
Traffic and Parking Working Party and Cabinet 

Committee
on

13th September 2018

Report prepared by: Peter Geraghty, 
Director for Planning and Transport

Request for Waiting Restrictions  
Earls Hall Avenue.

Cabinet Member: Councillor Moring
Part 1 Public Agenda Item 

1. Purpose of Report

1.1.1 For the Traffic and Parking Working Party and the Cabinet Committee to 
consider a petition from residents of Earls Hall Avenue and Mayfield Avenue 
requesting a waiting restriction prohibiting parking at any time on the south side 
of Earls Hall Avenue form the access gates to the school to the driveway of No. 
46 Earls Hall Avenue.

2. Recommendation

2.1. That the Traffic and Parking Working Party and the Cabinet Committee:-

a) Thank the petitioner for taking the time to compile the petition and;

b) Agree to take no further action in regard to the other requested works.

3. Background

3.1 Earls Hall Avenue runs from Victoria Avenue to Mayfield Avenue to the rear of 
Southend High School for Boys.  The road is approximately 670 metres in length 
featuring residential premises, access to the school and school playing fields.

 
3.2 The street is subject to a speed limit of 30mph and waiting restrictions are 

provided as shown on the plan at Appendix 1 to this report.

3.3 The request does not meet the criteria adopted by this Committee as no 
collisions resulting in personal injury have been recorded.  Officers have been 
unable to assess traffic flows and congestion as the petition was submitted to the 
Council meeting of 19th July 2018, 

Agenda
Item No.

47

8



Report Title Page 2 of 3 Report Number

shortly before the commencement of the school holidays.  Parking and traffic 
flows around schools are lower during school holidays therefore any surveys 
undertaken may not be representatives of a normal school day.  A photograph 
submitted on the petition has been provided in Appendix 2 to this report.

3.4 The area in which the waiting restrictions have been requested does feature a 
slight bend however, the extent of the restrictions requested, as shown in 
Appendix 1 to this report, appear to be commence a considerable distance from 
the bend in both directions.  

 
3.5 It is understood that residents may be frustrated by the school parking, the school 

has a popular sixth form unit and with the growing numbers of sixth form pupils 
along with the increasing likelihood of young drivers choosing to drive to school, 
parking is likely to be pressured.

3.6 There is a concern that prohibiting parking to the extent requested will likely 
result in these vehicles being displaced into neighbouring streets resulting in 
additional requests.

3.7 In the event Members wish to take action, it is suggested that the resulting 
proposal should be shortened considerably from that requested.  

 
4. Other Options  

4.1 Agree to the waiting restriction as requested.  As no evidence is available to 
ensure the request meets the criteria set by this committee.  Making changes to a 
road layout or reducing the speed should be considered in the context of a 
benefit and dis-benefits.  How does the financial costs to implement such 
measures compare to costs being incurred due to collisions, traffic delays or 
other factors.  Any resulting negative impact on adjacent streets or areas should 
also be a factor.  Implementing waiting restrictions on an individual basis does 
not remove the issue but merely moves it in the next street or area.  

5. Reasons for Recommendations

5.1 To ensure any action is appropriate to the issue and results in a beneficial impact 
without negatively impacting on adjacent streets.

6. Corporate Implications

6.1 Contribution to Council’s Vision & Corporate Priorities

6.1.1 Ensure the highway network is effectively managed contributing to a Safe and 
Prosperous Southend.

6.2 Financial Implications

6.2.1 The source of funding for minor maintenance will be from allocated budgets, 
where funding is provided from alternative budgets, this is highlighted as 
appropriate.

48



Report Title Page 3 of 3 Report Number

6.3 Legal Implications

6.3.1 None if the recommendation is agreed.  

6.4 People Implications

6.4.1 Staff time will be required to organise the maintenance. 

6.5 Property Implications

6.5.1 None

6.6 Consultation

6.6.1 None.

6.7 Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.7.1 Any highway maintenance is provided for the benefit of all road users and takes 
account of all users of the public highway including those with disabilities.

6.8 Risk Assessment

6.8.1 The requests have been assessed against collision data and vehicle monitoring 
data.  

6.9 Value for Money

6.9.1 All highway works are undertaken by term contractors appointed through a 
competitive tendering process.

6.10 Community Safety Implications

6.10.1 The requests were assessed against collision and monitoring data.     

6.11 Environmental Impact

6.11.1 None, however, should the recommendation not be agreed and Members decide 
to proceed with speed reduction measures, increased congestion and pollution 
can be increased by reducing speeds.  

7. Background papers

None

8. Appendices

Appendix 1 – Street Plan
Appendix 2 – Resident’s Petition - photograph

49



This page is intentionally left blank



25

W
ard Bdy

CR

29

72

PRINCE AVENUE

56

78

86

68

101

42

4
0

3
5

3
4

2
3

2
8

2
4

3
4

4
5

47

58

61

67

6

1
6

10

2
63

1

89

1
1
9

1
5
2

95

1
0
7

98

110

9
5

8
3

11

1
6

6
2

2
2

0

44

3
8

CLOSE
BEELEIGH

2
1

EARLS

22

HALL AVENUE

17

27

5

M
A

Y
F

IE
L

D
 A

V
E

N
U

E

1

1
5

1
7

1
1

4

MAYFIELD AVENUE

P
A
R

K
S

T
O

N
E
 D

R
IV

E

1
9

1
21

5

58

46

53

37

6

47

1
1

5

7
7

70

69

7
9

8
1

7
5

71

1
4
2

E
A
R

L
S

 H
A

L
L 

A
V

E
N

U
E

105

1
3

4
1
3
0

Post

9
6

73

76

1
0

6
1
1
0

1
2
0

1
1
6

Earls Hall

Baptist Church

No stopping Mon-Fri

8am-9.30am and

2.30pm-4.30pm on entrance

markings

Limited waiting

Mon-Sat 9am-6pm 1hr no

return w ithin 4hrs

Limited waiting

Mon-Sat 9am-6pm 1hr no

return w ithin 4hrs

Limited waiting

Mon-Sat 9am-6pm 1hr no

return w ithin 4hrs

Limited waiting

Mon-Sat 9am-6pm 1hr no

return w ithin 4hrs

Limited waiting

Mon-Sat 9am-6pm 1hr no

return w ithin 4hrs

Urban Clearway

Mon-Fri 8am-9.30am and

4.30pm-6.30pm

Urban Clearway

Mon-Fri 8am-9.30am and

4.30pm-6.30pm

No waiting

at any time (p)

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   PROPOSED NO WAITING AT ANY TIME

EARLS HALL AVENUE 22/08/2018

1 : 1250

*************************

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material

with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the

Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown

Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown

copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil

proceedings. 

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council 

Licence No: 100019680 2016

51



This page is intentionally left blank



53



54



Report Title Page 1 of 5 Report Number

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council

Report of Deputy Chief Executive (Place)
to

Traffic and Parking Working Party and Cabinet 
Committee

on
13th September 2018

Report prepared by: Peter Geraghty, Director for Planning 
and Transport

Hospital Area Controlled Parking Zone

Cabinet Member: Councillor Moring
Part 1 Public Agenda Item 

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 For the Traffic and Parking Working Party and the Cabinet Committee to 
authorise the advertisement of amendments to the existing Controlled Parking 
Zone around Southend Hospital. 

2. Recommendation

2.1. That the Traffic and Parking Working Party and the Cabinet Committee:-

a) Consider the requests to advertise the amendments to the existing 
Traffic Regulation Order;

b) If approved, further agree that in the event of there being no objections 
to the proposals, the Traffic Regulation Order be confirmed;

c) Note that all unresolved objections will be referred to the Traffic and 
Parking Working Party for consideration.

3. Background

3.1 The Controlled Parking Scheme in operation around Southend Hospital has been 
in place since 2011.  Minor amendments have been made since this time to 
increase parking bay numbers and make improvements but due to ever 
increasing parking demands, a comprehensive change to the operation of the 
scheme is justified.

3.2 At present, the parking is set out to include designated areas of;

Resident Permit Holder parking bays 
Pay And Display parking bays
Limited Waiting parking bays
Business Permit Holder parking bays
Controls operate from 9.30am to 4.30pm Monday to Friday.

Agenda
Item No.

55

9



Report Title Page 2 of 5 Report Number

3.3 As demand increases, there are often vehicles driving around the area 
attempting to locate available Pay and Display parking bays while plentiful 
Resident Permit Holder bays are available.  This behaviour increases congestion 
and vehicle emissions around the area which is detrimental to residents and road 
users.

3.4 Resident Permit Holder Bays appear to be used primarily in the early mornings 
and again in the late afternoons, presumably this is due to residents who may 
only require parking near to their home before and after work.   Results of an 
occupancy survey undertaken is at Appendix 1 to this report.

3.5 Use of Resident Permit Holder Bays as a shared resource between 9.30am to 
4.30pm could reduce congestion in the area.  Amendment of the operational 
hours of the scheme could then protect residents at the times when these bays 
may be required for their sole use, for example

8am to 9.30am Resident Permit Holder Only 
9.30am to 4.30pm Resident Permit Holder or Pay and Display
4.30pm to 6pm Resident Permit Holder Only 

3.6 A further requested change is to ensure any parking charges reflect the hospital 
car park charge, this will avoid the streets being used in preference to the 
hospital car park.  The car park charges are;

Up to 3 hours £3.10
Up to 6 Hours £4.00
6 to 11 hours £6.00
12 hours £10.00

Our current charges for the parking bays on street are;

Up to 2 hours £2.10
Up to 4 hours £2.80

This could be encouraging use of the on street parking bays over the car park for 
those wishing to stay more than 3 hours.

3.7 To deter this, it is suggested that our charging structure is amended to ;

Up to 3 hours £3.50
Up to 6 Hours £4.50 Maximum 

4. Other Options

4.1 Retain existing operational rules and charges.  This will not reduce congestion in 
the area with hospital users seeking parking on street. Members may consider 
taking no further action if they feel it is appropriate.

56



Report Title Page 3 of 5 Report Number

5. Reasons for Recommendations

5.1 To reduce congestion and emissions while creating additional parking capacity 
during the daytime.  

6. Corporate Implications

6.1 Contribution to Council’s Vision & Corporate Priorities

6.1.1 Ensure the highway network is effectively managed contributing to a Safe and 
Prosperous Southend.

6.2 Financial Implications

6.2.1 This will require £85,680 of funding to install pay and display machines, signage 
and installation costs.  No provision has been made for this and a bid would be 
required from capital funding.

6.3 Legal Implications

6.3.1 The formal statutory consultative process will be completed in accordance with 
the requirements of the legislation where applicable.

6.4 People Implications

6.4.1 Staff time will be required to organise the advertisement procedures and monitor 
the progress of the proposals.

6.5 Property Implications

6.5.1 None

6.6 Consultation

6.6.1 Formal consultation will be undertaken including advertisement of the proposal in 
the local press and on the street as appropriate.

6.7 Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.7.1 The objectives of providing additional parking and reducing congestion and 
emissions takes account of all users of the public highway including those with 
disabilities.

6.8 Risk Assessment

6.8.1 Neutral.

6.9 Value for Money

6.9.1 All works resulting from the scheme design are to be undertaken by term 
contractors appointed through a competitive tendering process.

57



Report Title Page 4 of 5 Report Number

6.10 Community Safety Implications

6.10.1 The proposal is designed to allocate additional public parking, reducing vehicle 
movements and contributing to the overall safety within the area.   

6.11 Environmental Impact

6.11.1 Additional parking bays on street can reduce the requirement for vehicles to 
travel repeatedly along the roads seeking parking.  This will reduce congestion 
and emissions within the area.  

7. Background papers

None

8. Appendices

Appendix 1 – results of occupancy survey 
Appendix 2 – plan of area 

58



Report Title Page 5 of 5 Report Number

Appendix 1

Surveys undertaken mid-morning on 15th August 2018 and early afternoon on 
16th August 

Total Number of 
Vehicles

Location Total Capacity

AM PM

Prittlewell Chase 17 7 7

Cardigan Avenue 13 3 3

Carlingford Drive 35 8 13

Hillborough Road 18 10 8

Carlton Drive 56 24 26

Lavender Grove 10 3 4

Total Number of Empty Resident Only Spaces

AM 94

PM 88

59



This page is intentionally left blank



8

138

126

140

128

CR

Ward Bdy

Prince Avenue Primary

Foundation School and Nursery

37

35

55

39

57

41

7

3

111

77

91
93

95

75

97

113
107

109

52

50

46
48

L Twr

4 3

68
70

80

82

2
8

H
IG

H
F

IE
L

D
 G

R
O

V
E

2
9

4
0

4
7

3
9

4
5

116

4
2

124a

139

126 124

141 El Sub Sta

2
2

2
3

HIGHFIELD WAY

3
7

H
IG

H
F

IE
L

D
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

4
1

3
2

PRITTLEWELL CHASE

4
9144150

1

5
2

5
5

4

S
P

R
IN

G
F

IE
L

D
 D

R
IV

E

1

4
5

159

154
156

157

6
2

166

169

8
6

Post

9
6

1
0

6

1
1

0

for Boys

Southend High School

5
2

6
6

6
3

TCB
Post

7
0

6
1
2

H
O

B
L

E
Y

T
H

IC
K

 L
A

N
E

3
8

2
0

3
5

3
3

2
7

1
5

1
1

5

147

1
7

1
2

11

15

5
5

14

C
H
A

S
E
 G

A
R
D

E
N

S

25
a

24

39

14

2
5

1
0

6

7

1

L
A

V
E

N
D

E
R

 G
R

O
V

E

18
a

18

29

20

8

19

11

1
5

to
to

38
to

CARLINGFORD DRIVE

30 28

44

22

36

4

3

7

1

LAVENDER MEWS

99

56

3
2

a

115

H
IL

L
B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 R

O
A

D

56

42

179

2 1

3
2

3
0

H
i llb

o
ro

u
g
h

2a

5a

M
a

n
sio

n
s

1a
6
a

56

3
7

3
9

Earls Hall Court

Allotment Gardens

202

188
178

135137
141

131

149

Tank

El Sub Sta

1
9

118

1
7

116

1
5

97
1
1

151

161

LB

Posts

Southend Hospital

TCB

212
222

1 to 7

Court

St Georges

173

193 187
171

195

181
179

185

P
a

th

Lancaster

School

El Sub Sta

C
A

R
D

IG
A

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E

2
1 2

8
2
4

1
7

1
6

1
2

PRITTLEWELL CHASE

El Sub Sta

2

209

3
3

215

8

Shelter

R
O

C
H

F
O

R
D

 R
O

A
D2

FB

LB

1
2

6

1
1

6

Earls Hall

Baptist Church

1
4

1 Sta

1
3

8

1
2

7

1
3

7

El

142

147

143

120

Sub

1
4

9

122

1
5

BELL WALK

3
2

2
6

2
1

1
1

1

7

3

15

5

11

154

4

1
1

18

3

4
9

4

7
2

42

36

166

37

MIDHURST AVENUE

2
5

2
8

18

23

PRINCE AVENUE

54

47

188

59

4
1

1412
10

9

11
6

LARKE RISE

2
0

1
8

19

6

Sub Sta
9

H
O

B
L

E
Y

T
H

IC
K

 L
A

N
E

9
9

9
5

1
0

4

1
0

3

9
2

8
6

1
1

1

8
5

8
3

130

12

134 TCB

27

3

6

2

12

15

31

7
9

2
6

38

48

35

HENLEY CRESCENT

6
0

1
7

19

1
4

1
5

41

1
6

1
1

34

3
7

8
4

176

7
6

51

44a
44

CARLTON AVENUE

55

46

90

54

60

59

61

86 58

Earls Hall Junior and Infant  Schools

89

64

104

The

Hall

Gospel

Shelter

C
O

LE
M

A
N

S
 A

V
E

N
U

E

6
8

5
7

4
7

8

1
1

1
2

1
5

5

LB

109

6

103

34 36

5
04

3

6

1
6

2
0

8
1
2

120

5

122

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
 R

O
A

D

111

115

127

1
4

7

TCB

3
0

R
IC

H
M

O
N

D
 D

R
IV

E

1
6

5

15
21

1

1
1

25

2

27

1

El Sub Sta

302420

14

FAIRVIEW DRIVE

T
H

E
A

R
 C

L
O

S
E

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R
 D

R
IV

E

3
9

3
6

9

4
0

5
0

142

159
151

138140

139

3

2
7

12

1

2
4

2

7
0

6
0

7
7

6
5

5
1
1

1
5

7

6
1
2

7
9

200

7
6

7
2

8
0

194

8
4

14

2

El

201

220

6
7

4
6

3
42

5
3
7

29

230

244

238

4
4

234

D
E

N
T

O
N

 A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

FB

237

235

225

2
7

1
5

264

3
9

4
9

250

249

253255

251

263

8
2

9
1

290

278

8
9

300

4
45

3

260
262

252
254

213

296

294
292

298

Ward Bdy

CR

1

ROCHESTER MEWS

169

5

1
8

1

1

154

CARLTON AVENUE

160

180

174

4
1

Q
U

E
E

N
 A

N
N

E
'S

 M
E

W
S

5
6

4
4

El Sub Sta

4
2

a
4
2

4
0

a

3
2

3
4

Clough House

281
2

P
R

IN
C

E
 C

L
O

S
E

273

289

322
312

PRINCE AVENUE

316

LB

6
8

8
0

205

CARLINGFORD DRIVE

205a
205b

4
0

1
9

4

1
8

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

Resident permit holders only (Zone_H)

Pedestrian Crossing

Keep Clear Entrance Marking

PMS Areas Mon-Fri 9.30am-4.30pm Hospital
PMS (Zone H)

Unrestricted Bay

Mon-Fri 9.30am-4.30pm
Limited waiting Mon-Fri 9.30am-4.30pm
30mins no return within 4hrs

except buses

2 Wheel Parking

No stopping Mon-Fri 8am-9.30am and
2.30pm-4.30pm on entrance markings

24hr Clearway

No stopping except buses

Bus Stand No stopping Mon-Fri 7am-7pm

Mon-Fri 9.30am-4.30pm

Payment Parking Mon-Fri 9.30am-4.30pm
(Tariff_7)

Business permit holders only (Zone_H)
Mon-Fri 9.30am-4.30pm

No stopping at any time except taxis

No waiting at any time

No waiting

No loading at any time

Disabled badge holders only

Limited waiting

Resident permit holders only (Zone_H)

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

 

Selected map area

20/08/2018

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material

with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the

Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown

Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown

copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil

proceedings. 

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council 

Licence No: 100019680 2016

HOSPITAL AREA CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE - BAY LOCATION PLAN

*************************

1 : 1420

61



195

1
6

0
1
5

8
418
408434

432

2
0

3
2
0

1438

483
471
473

485

436

491

472
470

487
489493

2
1

7

CS

2
1

3

2
3

5

2
1

2

2
3

1

2
2

4

2
2

8

221

Prit tle Brook

El Sub Sta

Path

1 to 25

1
9

4

2
0

6

1
7
4

D
en

ture
 C

lin
ic

S
o

u
th

b
ou

rn
e G

ro
v

e

26
28

24

10

1

Chase High School

Lancaster

School

El Sub Sta

C
A

R
D

IG
A

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E

2
1 2

8
2
4

1
7

1
6

1
2

PRITTLEWELL CHASE

El Sub Sta

2

7

3

209
220

3
3

224

214

215

St Peter's Church

Hall

2
0

2
8

1
2

1
 to 6

Court

2
6

Tennis

230

4
9

5
1

237

243

5

6

8

223

Chase High Sixth Form Centre

Sports Centre

2
1

HOLMSDALE CLOSE

1
1

E
A

S
T

B
O

U
R

N
E

 G
R

O
V

E

3
7

a

3
5

3
9

a

3
7

4
1

3
9

b

15

7
8

9

2

C
F

W
ar

d
 B

dy

253

260
262

261

LB

257 255

3
4

8

3
3

2
3
3

6

3
4

4

3
1

5

322a

3
1

2

3
2

2

3
2

5

3
2

4

3
0

2

3
0

5

2
9

8

3
0

1

2
9

5

2
9

2

3
4

3

276

270

W
E

S
T

B
O

U
R

N
E

 G
R

O
V

E

275

267

2
6

2

2
5

9

2
5

6

2
4

5

2
6

1

2
4

9 2
5

0

2
5

5

2
4

0

PRITTLEWELL CHASE

287

2
8

5
a

2
8

7
a

4
0

1

1
2

4
1

1

7

1
4

271

254

228

244

3
6

4

3
6

0

3
8

0

3
7

8

3
6

5

3
6

2

3
7

4

3
6

6

3
5

3
3
4

9

3
5

4

3
4

6

3
5

8

3
4

4

S
O

U
T

H
B

O
U

R
N

E
 G

R
O

V
E

3
2

9

3
5

0

3
3

6

E
l 

S
u

b
 S

ta

3
2

0

272274

264

3
1

4

3
1

3

3
1

7 289

5
0

S
O

M
E

R
S

E
T

 A
V

E
N

U
E

6
0

2
4

4
7

24

21

3
4

0

2

8

3
3

8

25

14

14

C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

18

S
O

M
E

R
S

E
T

1
1

1
4

10
a

10

YEOVIL CHASE

17

20

2

12

1
29

11

34

Posts

BRIDGWATER DRIVE

46

33

47

1

6

1
9

1
1

11

3

TAUNTON DRIVE

EX
FO

RD
 A

VEN
UE

58

44

47

2
7

1

2
6

7

2
4

3
2
4

7
2
4

1
2

4
5

2
4

2
2
4

4

294

2
3

6

1
9

1

Grove Court

2
0

5

El Sub Sta

1
9

9

2
0

3

1
8

2
1
9

0

1
9

5

2
5

5

297

2
3

1
2
7

3

2
3

5

2
3

2

2
3
3
a

2
1

6

2
2

3

2
2

4

2
1

0
2
1

4

2
1

1
2

1
5

2
6

6

4
 to 6

11
5

 to
 1

6

3

Ramsey

7
 to 10

2
7

2

Court

2

El Sub Sta

Ward Bdy
CR

46

87

90

2
4

0

89

2
3

8

2
3

8
a

16

1
2

7

17

1
4

1

2

5

CLATTERFIELD GARDENS

1
3

Surgery

KENILWORTH GARDENS

9

92

2

12

19

Linmar

1

M
E

R
IL

IE
S

 C
L

O
S

E

22

1
a

2
1

M
E

RILIES G
ARD

EN
S

7

14

39
4
1

40

2
8

2
7

W
E

L
L

S
T

E
A

D
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

15

30

101

LB

3
0

9

3
0

4

3
0

3

3
0

6

2
9

3

3
1

0

2
9

6

2
9

9

1
1

 to
 1

4

2
8

7
2

8
5

2
9

0

2
8

2

2
9

1

2
7

8

3
3

4

7

2
1

9

2
4

0
a

2
3

3

2
5

4

2
6

1

2
2

6

S
O

U
T

H
B

O
U

R
N

E
 G

R
O

V
E

3

3
0

0

14

SOUTHBOURNE GARDENS

1

12

7

15

15

1
4

SELD
ON CLO

SE

8

3
5

32

3
8

27

1
2

Posts

38

14

100

91

5

15

70

3
1

2
0

16

1
8

17

1

3
9

159

2
7

5
1
1

1
5

7

5
3

ROCHESTER MEWS

169

5

1
8

1

1

154

CARLTON AVENUE

160

180

174

4
1

Q
U

E
E

N
 A

N
N

E
'S

 M
E

W
S

5
6

4
9

4
4

El Sub Sta

4
2

a

Q
U

E
E

N
 A

N
N

E
'S

 D
R

IV
E

4
2

4
0

a

3
2

3
4

3
9

209

1
9

1
1

2
1

5

1
8

2
9

2
5

223

6
4

227
219

E
A

S
T

B
O

U
R

N
E

 G
R

O
V

E

229

5
5

6
6

6
7

7
6

7
8

204

TCB

8
0

194

214

N
O

R
T

H
V

IL
L

E
 D

R
IV

E

3
0

4
2

5
1

3
7

3
6

2
3
8

0
a

3
7

8
a

1
5

1
1

2
5

3
3

8
a

3
4

0
a

3
4

0

226

3
3

8

3
4

2

WESTBOURNE GROVE

241
229

3

253

245

3
6

1

CARLTON AVENUE

279

3
7

5

3
7

8
W

E
S

T
B

O
U

R
N

E
 G

R
O

V
E

3
5

0

3
5

3

3
9

4
3
9

0
3
8

6
3
9

1

18

3
3

9

Clough House

LB

6
8

St Peters

340

5
9

TCB 8
0360a

362

4
0

4

356 to 358

6
5

6
96
7

6
3

6
1

R
O

S
A

R
Y

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S

3
7

1

205

CARLINGFORD DRIVE

205a205b

4
0

5
2

PO

Court

1
9

4203

6

1
8

5
6

3
3

5

3
2

8

3
3

9

3
8

4

4

1

OAK TREE GARDENS

3
9

3

4
0

3

FAIRFAX DRIVE

4
1

3

CS

Path

Prit tle Brook

Playground

423
449

Ward Bdy

1
4

9

4
1

0 
to

 4
1

6

4
2

0

4
3

0

467 465

475
469

4
4

2

481

4
4

0

485b

1
6

9
1
7

14
6

0

462
476480

478 474 468

499
501

505
503

482

507
517

4
8

4

496

498

C
o

u
rt

W
es

tb
o

u
rn

e

TCB

1
 t

o 
6

529

Ward Bdy

535

545
543

541
547

FAIRFAX DRIVE

Ward Bdy

565

569

575

1
6

8
1
7

2
1
7

0
1
6

6

FW

U
n

d

1
6

1

1
6

4

CF

F
W

C
F

C
o

u
rt

C
a

v
e
n
d

is
h

48

Tennis Courts

Tennis Courts

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

Resident permit holders only (Zone_H)

Pedestrian Crossing

Keep Clear Entrance Marking

PMS Areas Mon-Fri 9.30am-4.30pm Hospital
PMS (Zone H)

Unrestricted Bay

Mon-Fri 9.30am-4.30pm
Limited waiting Mon-Fri 9.30am-4.30pm
30mins no return within 4hrs

except buses

2 Wheel Parking

No stopping Mon-Fri 8am-9.30am and
2.30pm-4.30pm on entrance markings

24hr Clearway

No stopping except buses

Bus Stand No stopping Mon-Fri 7am-7pm

Mon-Fri 9.30am-4.30pm

Payment Parking Mon-Fri 9.30am-4.30pm
(Tariff_7)

Business permit holders only (Zone_H)
Mon-Fri 9.30am-4.30pm

No stopping at any time except taxis

No waiting at any time

No waiting

No loading at any time

Disabled badge holders only

Limited waiting

Resident permit holders only (Zone_H)

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

 

Selected map area

20/08/2018

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material

with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the

Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown

Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown

copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil

proceedings. 

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council 

Licence No: 100019680 2016

HOSPITAL AREA CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE - BAY LOCATION PLAN

*************************

1 : 1420

62



80

GaragePrinc es Court

72

78

86

8

72

CLOSE

86

1
11

1
13

1
19

94

LB

91

1
25

1
31

9
0

9
9

79Shel ter

83

S
u

rg
e

ry

95

1
12

1
08

4
0

1
24

100
98

94
96

8

uni t 1

El  Sub Sta

uni t 253

60

94 GP

1 to 30 (over)

Bel l  Hote l

85

(PH)

H
A

M
P

T
O

N

86

1

101

138

126

140

128

116
114

120
118

CR

Ward Bdy

Princ e Av enue Prim ary

Foundation Sc hool  and Nurs ery

2
8a

1
47

112

1
53

18

9

2

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S 1

41

89

1
46

1
48

2
8

A
L

T
O

N
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

3
7

2
5

1
6

1
26

1
28

6

1
8

1
24

1
3

8

6
10

16

1
48

1

7

9
8 1

1
571

55

1
35

5
0

6
2

1
36

1
37

1
291
27

1
14

R
O

C
H
F
O
R
D
 R

O
A
D

1
09

6
4

6
6

6
0

S
h

el
te

r

14 to 18

1
03

1
12

2

7
8 7
6

4

27

3
4

4
5

61

67

1
6

2
63

1

89

1
19

1
52

95

1
07

98

110

9
5

8
3

37
35

55

39

57

41

7

3

111

77

9193

95

75

97

113
107109

52

50

46
48

L Twr

4 3

68

70
80
82

15

166

158

160

1
87

1
89

1
95

1
97

1
851

83

1
79

1
81

1
691

67

1
65

1
59

3

2
4

2

Shak espeare

Court

P
A

R
K

S
T

O
N

E
 D

R
IV

E

1
9

1
21

5

2
4 1

33

3
0

1
35

1
39

4
2

1
51

84

58

46

53

37

6

47

1
1

5

8

SHAKESPEARE AVENU E

6

2
0

1
4

1
1

3
9

2
7

S
T

 G
E

O
R

G
E

'S
 D

R
IV

E

86

2
2

3
2

22

21

16

31

1

24

108
110

T
re

es

4
9

4
6

1
2

1
0

5
7

8

1
7

9

7
7

70

69

7
9

8
1

7
5

71

1
42

E
A

R
L

S
 H

A
L

L 
A

V
E

N
U

E

105

1
34

1
30

1

4

11

Cas tle  Cary

1

2

25
27

33a

33

Foot Bridge

455569
35

6
3

8
9

7
5

8
5

1
01

6
3

1
00

6
1a

W
E

N
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

7
7

6
1

4
9

123125

132

3
8

9
7

123a

1
13

1
17

1
17

a119

6
2

5
8

7
8

6
6

9
0

2
7

3
9

5
1

1
5

1
24

1
36

152
156

146

129
133

1
03

1
12

1
12

1
24

S
IL

V
E

R
D

A
L

E
 A

V
E

N
U

E

1
62

1
52

1
60

1
48

1
00

9
6

7
3

8
3

9
3

1
21

1
44

1
42

1
40

1
25

1
27

1
28

1
38

1
31

1
15

1
19

1
65

172

145151

1
63

6
1

6
8

8
2

6
9

6
5

5
9

4
0

2
8

3
8

46

4
5

1
27

WESTBOROU GH ROAD

CF

3

W
E

N
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

1
7

1
1

S
IL

V
E

R
D

A
L

E
 A

V
E

N
U

E

2
2

4
1

2
7

3
2

Sta
Sub

3
1

2
9

3
9

4
3

4
5

4
4

4
6

5
0

4
8

3
7

1
82
0

4
6

4
4

C
R

One

1

2

CF

C
R

C
W

F
W

1
3

C
F

C
R

FW

3
0

14

1
3a

2
8a

30 16

2
8

1
4

1
6

2
0

4
0

3
0

1
4

2
8

3
2

3
4

3
81

 to
 6

Stowe Ct

7
 to

 1
1

343640
38

El

44 42
64

70
68

66

83

1
6

1
25

C
R

C
F

CS

Ward Bdy

C
F

C
F

4
0

1
2

17a to 17d

1
7

1
40

1
38

192
190

8
3a

1

214

211

13

209

CS

4
35

2

236
238 234

232

229

1
8

2
1

8
0

1
9

2
1

9
4

1

257

4

63
52

255

1
64

1
62 244

to

240

1
12

a

Ward Bdy

120
118

151

149

164 166
168

185
187 183

Soc ata Hous e

213 205
207211

209

St Andrew' s  Churc h

555

583-585

Court

Chennels

2

CS

Ward Bdy

301

291

1
65

1
67

262

260
258a

2
00

2
02

Spring Court

309 and 311

1 to  6
Fairings  Court

1  to  25

F
IE

LD
IN

G
 W

A
Y

1
28

327
313 and 315

1 to  6

310

1
48

a

Brook  Court323

1
43

5
0

4
3

60

4
8

4
2

48

3
5

2
6

2
9

G
L

E
N

W
O

O
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E

IN
V

E
R

N
E

S
S

 A
V

E
N

U
E

1
3

2
3

1
7

1
5

1
1a

2
6

5
0

5
7

4
5 3

8

104

6
0

94110

El  Sub Sta

119129135

H
A

IN
A

U
L

T
 A

V
E

N
U

E

3
3

2
3

3
6

5
4

4
9

4
5

5
7

7
0

5
0

4
8

3
6

147

LB

134 128

TCB

145153159

1
69

B
R

IG
H

T
W

E
L

L
 A

V
E

N
U

E

3
1

2
0

2
4

5
0

4
5

5
7

3
8

140152 144

152a

152b

5
8

7375

5
2

5
4

7
2

4
5

5
7

6
9

8
8

1
00

IN
V

E
R

N
E

S
S

 A
V

E
N

U
E

8
4

8
1

9
3

9
7

1
24

1
13

1
1

1
09

1
14

1
16

1
26

1
17

1
29

1
36

1
40

1
52

7
1

6
8a

6
6a

6
8

6
6

7
0

7
0a

7
2

1
11

9
3

G
L

E
N

W
O

O
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E

9
0

9
4

1
04

1
25

1
39

1
51

5
9

86 80

G
a

ra
ge

99

5
2

105

7
4

7
5

9
6

8
6

1
20

1
32

1
08

1
36

1
50

1
64

1
78

1
23

1
35

H
A

IN
A

U
L

T
 A

V
E

N
U

E

1
1

8
1

30

1
11

9
9

1
0

0
1

06

9
5

1
35

1
47

1
5

9

1
44

1
5

6

1
45

1
22

1
34

8
7

7
2

8
6

5
9

7
3

5
2

6
4

1
23

B
R

IG
H

T
W

E
L

L
 A

V
E

N
U

E

1
05

1
11

171

1
81

1
68

1
80

1
59

1
46

1
59

8
3

8
5

7
6

8
6

7
1

1
21

R
A

M
U

Z
 D

R
IV

E

9
6

9
6a

9
8

1
10

9
5

1
07

1
45

1
33

182

155163
1611

65
a

165

180

Path

26

1

2
8

1
9

H
IG

H
FIE

L
D

 G
R

O
V

E

3
3

2
9

2
9

C
L

E
V

E
L

A
N

D
 D

R
IV

E

4
0

4
7

4
1

3
9

4
5

116

H
IG

H
FIE

L
D
 C

L
O
S
E

1
89

610

12

14

5

1

1
98

LB

173

188194

1
56

1
58

1
54

1
41

El  Sub Sta

Pri ttle  Brook

2

4
2

124a

139

126 124

141 El  Sub Sta

1
96

183

H
a

ll

Ba lm oral  Terrace

TCB

177

193 to 199
201 to 207

15

1
5

2
2

2
3

1
1

1
2

4

9

DRIVE

HIGH FIELD

CRESC ENT
HIGH FIELD

8

7

2

8

1

HIGH FIELD WAY

3
7

H
IG

H
FIE

L
D

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S

4
1

3
2

1

FAIRFAX D RIVE

Av cocaTerrac e

1
83

1
82

PRITTLEWELL C HASE

4
9144150

1

Spring le igh

W
o

rk
s

Plac e

1225

235

3

Path

5
4

5
2

5
5

4

S
P

R
IN

G
FIE

L
D

 D
R

IV
E

1

4
5

3
0

3
4

3
6

4
2

3
5

1
71

1
75

1
60

258
248

1
75

2
6

2
5

Pos ts

2
1

Path

2
0

159

154
156

157

6
2

Lodge

Calverly

7

253

1 to  4

1
83

166

169

8
6

Pos t

9
6

73

76

1
06

1
10

1
20

fo r Boy s
Southend High Sc hool

5
2

6
6

6
3

TCB Pos t

7
0

6
1

2

H
O

B
LE

Y
T

H
IC

K
 L

A
N

E

3
8

2
0

3
5

3
3

2
7

1
5

1
1

5

147

1
7

1
2

11

15

5
5

1
4

C
H

A
S

E
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

2
5a

2
4

3
9

14

2
5

1
0

6

7

1

L
A

V
E

N
D

E
R

 G
R

O
V

E

18a

18

29

20

8

1
9

1
1

1
5

to
to38 to

CARLINGFO RD DRIVE

30 28

44

22

36

4

3

7

1

LAVENDER M EWS
99

56

3
2a

115

H
IL

LB
O

R
O

U
G

H
 R

O
A

D

5
6

4
2

179

2 1

3
2

3
0

H
i l lb

o
rou

g
h

2
a

5
a

M
an

sio
ns

1
a

6
a

56

3
7

3
9

Earls  Hal l  Court

Al lo tm ent Gardens

202

188
178

135137
141

131

149

Tank

El  Sub Sta

1
9

118

1
7

116

1
5

97
1

1

151

161

LB

Pos ts

Southend Hos pi ta l

TCB

212
222

1 to  7

Court

St Georges

173

193 187
171

195

181
179

185

577
575

619
617

611

268 to 272

613 609
607

TINTERN MEWS

1
11

1
13

9
9

1
01

1
03

1
05

212

216

214

1
19

1
27

1
43

347
349

1
41

1
25

1
21

9
4

9
6

8
7

8
9

8
6

8
8

P
a

th
8

3

1
09

1
11

8
1

1
60

1
47

1
50

1
52

1
49

1
64

1
62

1
66

1
55

1
57

1
16

1
18

1
34

1
32

1
60

1
15

1
54

1
56

1
29

1
17

1
27

1
36

1
34

1
58

1
06

1
14

1
16

1
88

1
90

418
408

434
432 2

03
2

01

4
4

6
5

4
6

1
711
69

438

483
471
473

485

436

1
42

1
40

1
72

1
74

491

472
470

487
489493

2
17

CS2
13

2
35

2
12

2
31

2
24

2
28

221

Pri ttle  Brook

El  Sub Sta

Path

1 to 25

1
94

2
06

1
7

4

D
e

n
tu

re
 C

lin
ic

S
o

uth
b

ou
rn

e G
ro

v
e

1
5

1
3

427 to  437

S
T

 G
E

O
R

G
E

S
 P

A
R

K
 A

V
E

N
U

E

26
28

24

10

1

Chas e High Sc hool

Lanc as ter
Sc hool

El  Sub Sta

C
A

R
D

IG
A

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E

2
1 2

8
2

4

1
7

1
6

1
2

PRITTLEWELL C HASE

El  Sub Sta

2

7

3

209

220 3
3

224

214

215

St Peter' s  Churc h

Hal l

2
0

2
8

1
2

1
 to

 6

Court

2
6

Tennis

230

4
9

5
1

237

243

5

6

8

223

Chas e High Six th  Form  Centre

Sports  Centre

2
1

HO LM SDALE C LO SE

1
1

E
A

S
T

B
O

U
R

N
E

 G
R

O
V

E

3
7a

3
5

3
9a

3
7

4
1

3
9b

15

7
8

9

2

C
F

W
a

rd
 B

d
y

253

260
262

261

LB

257 255

3
48

3
32

3
36

3
44

3
15

322a

3
12

3
22

3
25

3
24

3
02

3
05

2
98

3
01

2
95

2
92

3
43

276

270

W
E

S
T

B
O

U
R

N
E

 G
R

O
V

E

275

267
2

62

2
59

2
56

2
45

2
61

2
49 2

50

2
55

2
40

PRITTLEWELL C HASE

287

2
85

a

2
87

a

3
4

1
5

1
7

2
7

3
2

2
9

3
5

6
0

358 to 362

5
6

5
8

304
3025

4

705

Lawns

Chalk wel l
Hous e

Roy c e

703

83

S
T

 G
E

O
R

G
E

S
 P

A
R

K
 A

V
E

N
U

E

Hous e
Vinc ent

853

Shel ter

4
01

1
2

4
11

7

4
21

1
4

271

254

228

244

3
64

3
60

3
88

3
79

3
80

3
78

2

3
84

3
65

3
62

3
74

3
66

3
53

3
49

3
54

3
46

3
58

3
44

S
O

U
TH

B
O

U
R

N
E

 G
R

O
V

E

3
29

3
50

3
36

E
l  

S
ub

 S
ta

3
20

272
274

264

3
14

3
13

3
17 289

5
0

S
O

M
E

R
S

E
T

 A
V

E
N

U
E

6
0

2
4

4
7

5
7

24

21

3
40

2

8

3
38

25

14

1
4

C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

1
8

S
O

M
E

R
S

E
T

1
1

1
4

1
0a

10

YEOVIL CHASE

17

20

2

12

1

2
9

11

34

Pos ts

BRIDG WATER DR IVE

46

33

47

1

6

1
9

1
1

11

3

TAUNTON  D RIVE

57

EXFORD
 AVEN

UE

58

6
7

25

44

37

38

6

47

LANGPO
RT D

RIVE

3

14

60

4
4

M
A

N
N

E
R

IN
G

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S

5
6

6
1

5
5

TCB

59

69

25

28

LB

63

2
71

2
67

2
43

2
47

2
41

2
45

2
42

2
44

294

2
36

1
91 Grov e Court

2
05

El  Sub Sta

1
99

2
03

1
82

1
90

1
95

2
55

297

2
31

2
73

2
35

2
32

2
3

3
a

2
16

2
23

2
24

2
10

2
14

2
11

2
15

2
66

4
 to

 6

11
5 to

 16

3

Ram s ey

7
 to

 1
0

2
72

Court

2

El  Sub Sta

Ward Bdy
CR

46

87

90

2
40

89

2
38

2
38

a

16

1
2

7

17

1
4

1

2

5

CLATTERFIELD GAR DENS

1
3

Surgery

KENILWORTH GARD ENS

9

92

2

12

19

Linm ar

1

M
E

R
IL

IE
S

 C
L

O
S

E

22

1
a

2
1

M
ERILIES GARD

ENS

7

14

3
9

4
1

4
0

2
8

2
7

W
E

L
LS

T
E

A
D

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S

15

33

Sports  Ground

30

34

101108

2
2

25a 2425

3
0

32

LB

3
09

3
04

3
03

3
06

2
93

3
10

2
96

2
99

1
1 to

 14

2
87

2
85

2
90

2
82

2
91

2
78

3
34

7

2
19

2
40

a

2
33

2
54

2
61

2
26

S
O

U
TH

B
O

U
R

N
E

 G
R

O
V

E

3

3
00

14

SOU TH BOURNE G ARDENS

1

12

7

15

15

1
4

SELDON CLOSE

8

3
5

32

3
8

27

1
2

Pos ts

38

14

Pav i l ions

27

100

91

Tennis  Courts

5

11

15

2

30

15

16

7
0

20

3
1

2
0

16

3
4

1
8

1
7

33

1
8

4

1

8

Shel ter

R
O

C
H

F
O

R
D

 R
O

A
D

2

Surgery

FB

1
2

2

LB

1
26

1
16

Earls  Hal l

Baptis t Churc h

1
41 Sta

1
38

Garage

1
27

1
37

El

142

147

143

120

Sub

1
49

122

1
5

BELL WALK

3
2

2
6

2
1

1
1 1

7

3

15

5

11

154

102

12

9290

FB

4

1
1

18

3

4
9

4

7
2

42

36

166

37

M ID HURST AVENUE

2
5

58

2
8

HO RNBY AVENUE

68

18

23

PRINCE AVENU E

54

47

188

59

33

29

D
O

LP
H

IN
S

56

44

4
1

141210

1
2

1

8
7

TCB1
6

1
01

20

9
3

1
0

Al lo tm ent Gardens

1
1

17

1
5

26

El

15

Sta

LB

Sub

5

6
3

2

9
11

6

LARKE RISE

2
0

2
0

1
8

R
O

C
H

F
O

R
D

 R
O

A
D

112

104

7
1

122

115

FB

103

6
9

25

15

11

2

12

SID
M

OUTH A
VENUE

7
9

8
5

28

1

29

21

16

8

25

15

17

30

11

24

38
46

47

43

3545

87 89

Play ground

El  Sub Sta

48

47

44

65

53
39

34

35

31

54

46

56

52

37

42

64

59

52

61

14

75

12 15

49

SOU TH  C RESCENT

1
9

60

NO RTH CRESCENT

79

56

FEECHES RO AD

78

71

59

HO RNBY CLOSE

1

45

7

H
O

R
N

B
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

61

82

67
81

68

88

6

Sub Sta 9

80

95 91

70

91 89 83

99

92

H
O

B
LE

Y
T

H
IC

K
 L

A
N

E

9
9

9
5

1
04

1
03

9
2

8
6

1
11

8
5

8
3

130

12

134 TCB

27

3

6

2

12

15
31

7
9

2
6

38

48

35

HENLEY CRESCEN T

6
0

1
7

19

1
4

1
5

41

1
6

1
1

34

3
7

8
4

176

7
6

51

44a
44

CARLTON AVENU E

55

46

90

54

60

59

61

86 58

Gardens

Al lo tm ent

El  Sub Sta

Earls  Hall  Jun ior and Infant Sc hools

89

64

104

The

Hal l
Gos pel

Shel ter

C
O

LE
M

A
N

S
 A

V
E

N
U

E

6
8

5
7

4
7

8

1
1

1
2

1
5

5

LB

109

6

103

34 36

5
04

3

6

1
6

2
0

8
1

2

120

5

122

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L 
R

O
A

D

111
115

127

1
4

7

TCB

3
0

R
IC

H
M

O
N

D
 D

R
IV

E

1
6

5

15
21

1

1
1

25

2

27

1

El  Sub Sta

3024
20

14

FAIRVIEW DR IVE

T
H

E
A

R
 C

L
O

S
E

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R
 D

R
IV

E

3
9

3
6

9

4
0

5
0

142

159 151

138140

139

3

2
7

12

1

2
4

2

7
0

6
0

7
7

6
5

5
1

1
1

5
7

6
1

2

LB

32

7

1
4

38 42

C
R

A
N

S
TO

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E

3
5

1

2

1

7
9

200

7
6

7
2

8
0

194

8
4

DENTO N AVENUE

14

2

El

201

220

6
7

4
6

3
42

5
3

7

29

230

244

238

4
4

234

D
E

N
T

O
N

 A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

FB

237

235

225

17

34

33

28

11
15

2
7

1
5

264

3
9

4
9

250

249

253255

251

263

6
0

Fac tory

8
2

9
1

290

278

8
9

300

4
4

5
3

116

99

100

87

104

101

107

96

105113

92

110

33

128

19

100

122

260
262

252
254

213

101

130

127

126

138

122a

123

123

1
16

125
129

108112

119

46

16

21

4
5

2

20

6
1

5
9

6
7

2

132

DENTO N CLO SE

5
1

Al lo t Gdns

11
15

1

7

5
5

152

145 143

154

142

139

148

126

141

149

FEECHES RO AD

151
151a

132

153

1
 to

 1
2

9
6

9
4

El  Sub Sta

8
8

P
U

R
L

E
Y

 W
A

Y

14
to

D
E

N
T

O
N

 A
V

E
N

U
E

P
a

th

25

7
4

NO RTH CRESCENT

138

152

153

167

161

134

157

296

294
292

298

Trees

277

El  Sub Sta

163

144

Ward Bdy

CR

1

RO CHESTER MEWS

169

5

1
81

1

154

CARLTON AVENU E

160

180

174

4
1

Q
U

E
E

N
 A

N
N

E
'S

 M
E

W
S

5
6

4
9

4
4

El  Sub Sta

4
2a

Q
U

E
E

N
 A

N
N

E
'S

 D
R

IV
E

4
2

4
0a

3
2

3
4

3
9

209

1
9

1
1

2
1

5

1
8

2
9

2
5

223

6
4

227
219

E
A

S
T

B
O

U
R

N
E

 G
R

O
V

E

229

5
5

6
6

6
7

7
6

7
8

204

TCB

8
0

194

214

N
O

R
T

H
V

IL
L

E
 D

R
IV

E

3
0

4
2

5
1

3
7

3
62

3
80

a
3

78
a

1
5

1
1

2
5

3
38

a
3

40
a

3
40

226

3
38

3
42

WESTBOURN E G ROVE

241
229

3

253

245

3
61

CARLTON AVENU E

279

3
75

3
78

W
E

S
T

B
O

U
R

N
E

 G
R

O
V

E

3
50

3
53

3
94

3
90

3
86

3
91

18

3
39

Clough Hous e

5

281

2

P
R

IN
C

E
 C

L
O

S
E

273

289

322
312

PRINCE AVENU E

316

LB

6
8

St Peters

340

5
9

TCB 8
0

1  to  12

372

Princ e ' s  Park

360a

PRINCE AVENU E

362

South Point

380

4
04

4
14

4
27

356 to 358

6
5

6
9

6
7

6
3

6
1

R
O

S
A

R
Y

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S

3
71

4
33

Shel ter

3

2
1

436

BADG ERS

6

205

CARLINGFO RD DRIVE

205a205b

4
0

5
2

PO

Court

1
94203

6

1
8

5
6

3
35

3
28

3
39

3
84

Work s

El  Sub Sta

275

1
83

209

1
95

156

173

168

172

164

Play  Area

El  Sub Sta

P
a

th

177

Tank

El  Sub Sta

El  Sub Sta

Superm ark et

Ppg Stn

571

Shel ter

THANET GRAN GE

569

Hote l

N
E

S
T

U
D

A
 W

A
Y

El  Sub Sta

CR

PRINCE AVENU E

Cottage Garden Nurs ery
Ward Bdy

A 127

P
a

th
 (

u
m

)

M e l ros e Nurs eries

5
75

5
16

508

5
73

502

510

5
18

Runway

Runway  Approac h L ight

P
a

th
 (

u
m

)

Runway  Approac h L ights

Approac h L ight

J ubi lee Plac e

7
6

7
8

7
4

El  Sub Sta

C
L
O
S
E

7
2

1

4

1

OAK TREE GARD ENS

482

492

480

8
6

494

6
7

8
2

7
1

8
3

T
C

B

7
9

8
1

7
7

7
3

7
5

7

17

11

15

9

6

GLASTONBU
RY CHASE

22

23

21

24

23

18

1
0

8

6

1
2

1
1

66

80
82

64

2
2

2
0

500

2
6

2
4

1
8

532

528

534

526

S
h
el te

r

1
7

2
3

8

Fac tory

1
5

2
1

S
O
M

E
R
T
O
N
 A

V
E
N
U

E

579
577

1
1a

1
2

1
4

567

559

1

5
5a

5
9

5
7

5
7a

1
13

1
12

B
E

E
D

E
L

L
 A

V
E

N
U

E

1
24

1
36

1
25

5
5

5
3

6
4

4
9

to5
1

6
7

7
6

8
8

7
9

1
04

9
4

9
8

7
7

8
1

1
18

1
00

1
01

9
1

1
08

1
12

9
3

8
3

7
7

9
5

8
2

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
 A

V
E

N
U

E

7
4

9
4

9
4

8
0 7

7

S
O

U
TH

V
IE

W
 D

R
IV

E

6
9

7
8

7
6

8
2

8
4

N
O

R
T

H
V

IE
W

 D
R

IV
E

C
o

m
p

to
n 

C
o

u
rt

Elec tric  Court

Garage

6
0

4
7

8
5

9
8

9
9

Vic arage

5
7

6
4

7
3

7
9

8
5

8
5

9
5

9
0

8
0

5
7

6
9

6
5

7
5

6
8

5
5

4
7

173

162 156

5
0

Garage

5
3

WESTBOROUGH ROAD

177

5
2

4
7

203

180

4
3

188

195

Hous e
Col l ingwood
1 to  8

6
0

4
3

6
6

7
0

7
6

5
3

6
5

215

4
7

2
1

1
8

Yard
Bui lders

4
8

3
0

3
8

2
9

4
2

4
5

3
7

237

200

225

2
35

4
7

4
9

to
247

241

243

251

210

4
4

5
0

6
5

5
1

4
0

3
0

3
0

3
4

4
2

220 TCB

259

4
6

218

4
8

Ha l l

2
1

2
5

2
9

3
3

285

277

3
5

3
3

301

3
5

3
8

5
0

2

S
O

U
TH

V
IE

W
 D

R
IV

E

1
3

1

1
2

2
0

595

2
9

3
2

2
4

2
3

3
4

3
6

2
7

258

250

3
1a

3
1

3
5

313

4
3

3
8

4
1

2
7

2
3

R
A

M
U

Z
 D

R
IV

E

2
6

2
7

1
1

B
E

E
D

E
L

L
 A

V
E

N
U

E

1
5

1
3a W

E
S

T
C

L
IF

F
 P

A
R

K
 D

R
IV

E

1
5

1
3

5

1
6

3

Seventh-Day

9

N
O

R
T

H
V

IE
W

 D
R

IV
E

1
1

6

Leg ion
Bri tis h

7 HQ

561

Adventis t Church

9
1

7

1
a

1

573

2

Work s

1
6

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
 A

V
E

N
U

E

6
15

603

6
05

601

1
48

1
60

1
72

1
80

1
37

1
49

1
71

1
61

1
65

265

277

1
63

1
94

1
98

2
04

2
06

2
10

2
16

1
49

1
59

1
69

264

1
48

1
74

1
68

1
78

1
33

1
37

1
03

LB

W
E

S
T

C
L

IF
F

E
 P

A
R

K
 D

R
IV

E

1
28

1
30

1
38

1
01

1
07

1
11

1
15

Pri ttle  Brook

123

121

1
25

1
29

1
43

1
14

1
09

9
9

1
19

1
02

1
26

1
44

1
57

145

333

316

329

2
72

1
64

Church

Pentecos ta l

Hal l

El im

1
09

1
07

1
42

1
50

1
54

9
7

1
28

1
06

1
18

9
1

3
51

338 334

341
345

1
29

1
52

 to 1
4

2

1
28

1
40

1
03

1
08

1
18

1
15

350

3
63

375

344 342

Foot Bridge

Sub Sta
El

381

1
73

1
59

1
41

1
48

1
54

1
58

1
10

1
29

1
07

1
19

1
68

1
70

1
72

3
934

03

3
62

364
372

CR

Ward Bdy
LONDO N ROAD632 to 634

624628630

6
38

c

6
38

646

El  Sub Sta

Surgery

4
2

266

315

4
4

5
6

1
00

T
IN

T
E

R
N

 A
V

E
N

U
E

R
O

N
A

LD
 P

A
R

K
 A

V
E

N
U

E

6
0

7
0

327

280

WESTBOROU GH ROAD

LB

274

3
4

290

333
321

339

4
9

3
6

4
8

4
1

4
7

4
7a

5
5a

6
1

6
5

6
9

F
L

E
E

TW
O

O
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E

6
2

7
6

8
4

8
1

306

355

300
308

3
10

a
3

10

312

3
6

4
5

361

4
8

5
7

8
8

9
2

1
04

8
1

9
1

Sp i ri tua l is t

316

Churc h

National

Wes tc l i ff

5
3

338

7
8

371
379

H
IL

D
A

V
IL

L
E

 D
R

IV
E

1
16

1
03

1
21

1
07

1
09

El  Sub Sta

S
u

rg
e

ry

2

T
IN

T
E

R
N

 A
V

E
N

U
E

1a

1

2
5

1
5

2
1

2
4

1
2

2
8

3
2

3
8

3
5

6
33

631

W
e

st
cl

i f
f F

re
e 

C
h

u
rc

h

2

6
33

a

6
29

a
6

29

627

2
2

1
2

2
6

1

TCB

651

R
O

N
A

LD
 P

A
R

K
 A

V
E

N
U

E

647

2

643

Library

1
11

0
2

0 2
1

2
52

4
3

4a
3

4

310b

3
7

4
3

She l ter

648 to 656 612

636640

1
3

3131a

3
3

667 to 673

1
5

1

1
8

H
IL

D
A

V
IL

L
E

 D
R

IV
E

685
659 to 665

F
L

E
E

TW
O

O
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E

Warehous e

6
0

6
9

385

3
9

3
5

3
0

2
5

5
0

1
22

1
28

1
38

1
02

8
0

9
0

LB

1
36

PO

FAIRFAX D RIVE

TCB

4
13

382

1
14

1
07

1
13

CS

Path

Pri ttle  Brook

Play ground

423

1
31

105

105a

1
12

1
02

9
3

1
07

1
17

7
9

7
9a

8
1

8
5

9
9

449

Ward Bdy

1
49

4
10

 t
o 

4
1

6

4
20

1
80

1
72

1
68

1
84

1
64

1
27

1
37

1
96

4
30

467 465

1
57

1
53

1
30

1
42

1
46

1
56

1
37

1
41

1
63

1
67

1

3 Fa irv il le M ew s

2

475
469

701b

W
o

rk
s

F
A

IR
M

E
A

D
 A

V
E

N
U

E

1
2

7

666 to 686

699
701

6
64

6
62

713

697

LB

9
8

1
02

1
01

9
7

8
5

7
5

7
9

6
8

7
6

8
2

7
1

1 to 10
Fairmead House

TCB

352

397

6
4

403 401

3
8

3
3

3
4

4
4

5
0

4
0

3
7

5
3

2
1

2
0

3
0

1 to 4
368

4
9

366 364

407
409a

5
4

409

3

727 717

700

1

733

690 688

1
07

9
5

9
3

1
05

8
6W

E
S

T
M

IN
S

T
E

R
 D

R
IV

E

7
6

7
5

7
7

8
3

8
1

7
3

7
9

6
4

2
22

9
3

3

4
7

2
8

4
2

1
7

1
2

5

W
E

S
T

M
IN

S
T

E
R

 D
R

IV
E

2

425
411417421

6
1

8
6

Cl in ic

to
378

374

392

6
0

380

G
a

ra
ge

1
13

1
11

9
6

1
06

1
10

1
14

1
18

5
0

5
2

3
4

3
8

4
8

5
4

5
6

WESTBOROU GH ROAD

753

2
5

2
3

2
1

1
5

747

1
0

2
2

4
42

481

1
76

1
78

4
40

1
35

1
26

1
36

1
23

1
27

1
31

F
A

IR
M

E
A

D
 A

V
E

N
U

E

1
06

1
10

1
14

1
11

485b

1
61

1
69

1
71

4
60

462

1
49

1
72

476480
478 474 468

499
501505

503

482

1
56

1
58

1
87

1
89

1
60

1
62

1
50

1
52

1
54

1
64

1
46

1
441

71 1
73

1
69 1

42
1

48
1

22

1
55

1
32

1
23

1
21

1
25

1
27

1
41

9
8

1
06

1
12

W
e

st
m

in
st

e
r

1
 to

 6
7

 to
 1

2

M
an

si
o

ns

2
0

3
2

0
5

507
517

4
84

496

1
83

1
87

1
85

498

C
o

u
rt

W
e

st
b

ou
rn

e

TCB

1
81

1
80

1
 to

 6

1
70

1
71

1
61

1
56

1
60

529

Ward Bdy

535

1
45

1
57

1
44

1
41

1
29

1
35

1
33

1
39

1
40

1
21

1
25

W
E

S
T

B
O

U
R

N
E

 G
R

O
V

E

1
22

1
26

Elgor Hous e
El  Sub Sta

Play ground

1
15

9
5

1
09

441
439

404

5
5

Surgery

8
1

7
74
41

c
4

41
b

443

5
3

6
5

5
8

7
0

453

420
414

4
0 3

5

457 445

4
6

4
1

436 434

5
5

6
6

7
0

6
3

461

F
W

C
W

8
5

7
2

6

C
R

CW

F
W

El  Sub Sta

6
9

1

5
2

House

5
6

5
4

Stanley

1 to 3

5
8

FW

CF

CW

C
F

F
W

1

1

22

TCB

3a

11

15 11a

35

545
543

541

547

FAIRFAX D RIVE

LB

528

1
51

514

1
07

8
2

7
7

1
09

1
13

1
12

1
18

1
2

2
1

34
to1

24

1
37

1
21

1
19

1
1

9

1
13

1
00

9
4

1
1

7
1

23

Ward Bdy

565

569

575

1
11

1
05

1
0

7
1

01

1
68

1
7

2
1

7
0

1
66

FW

U
n

d

1
61

1
6

4

1
35

1
3

9

1
22

1
26

1
4

0

1
45

C
F

1
49

 to 1
5

3

CR 544

1
30

1
50

1
12

W
a

rd B
d

y
C

F

1
00

1
08

1
16

S
O

U
TH

B
O

U
R

N
E

 G
R

O
V

E

2

8
4

15

4
1

4

9
0

9
4

9
6

1
0

1
6

9

CF

F
W

C
F

C
o

u
rt

C
a

ve
n

dis
h 51 to 3

4

8

29

24

5
8 to

 62

12

5
1

2
6

1
9

2
9

S
A

N
D

O
W

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E

2
2

2
0

3
6

4
9a

4
9

4
1

4
6

5
6

21

9

Brook

8

W
E

S
T

B
O

U
R

N
E

 G
R

O
V

E

9
1

1
2

7

2
1a

3
3

1
9

1
7

1
7a

2
3

2
1

3
7

767
775

2
b

773

1

2
a

2

3
5

1
8

2
9

3
1

3
0

2
0

4

2
5

Surgery

1
3

C
R

Ward Bdy

CR

777
789

7
1

4
5

CR

4
6

3
6

2
0

W
a

rd B
d

yC
F

F
W

C
F

1

S
O

U
TH

B
O

U
R

N
E

 G
R

O
V

E

C
F

2

3
2

2
6

LONDO N ROAD

797

LB

805

TCBs

FW C
F

CF
CW FW

FW

4

807

2
8

C
F

C
H

2
10

4

Shel ter

817 809

El  Sub Sta

14

13

39

32

3
6

CAVEND ISH  G ARDENS

Pri ttle

Tennis  Courts
Tennis  Courts

EASTWOOD LANE SOUTH

28

30

36

42

LB
31

27
21

12

8

16

SOU TH BOROU GH DRIVE

2
5 2

8
3

2

37

50

WELLING TO N AVENUE

38

49

26

25

3

7
139

H
O

LY
R

O
O

D
 D

R
IV

E

1
9

9

1
1

1
6

2
0

15

20
30

27

SILVERSEA DRIVE

841

PC

Garage

843845
831 to 839

37

41

44

51

42

53a to 53e

49
57

3
7

48

52

56

50

48a

49

45

57

51

7

19

21 17

1
8

14

6

M ARTYNS GROVE

42

55
51

30

65
69

75
79

81

60

3
0

8185 75

61

847a
847

859

S
y

na
g

og
u

e

86 74 62

3

KINGSWAY MEWS

4

5

37

40
46

52

47
57

50

46

Bowl ing Green

69

6

61

1
2

S
H

A
N

K
L

IN
 D

R
IV

E

70

63

6064

61

881 8
79

a

879

863

89

Pav i l ionTCB

104
90

2
8

2
0

101

2

Garage

1
4

6

1
2

2
4

1
4

6

1

1
1

7

C
R

538

8
0

542

LB

25

19

3
2

562

6
6

DULVERTON  C LO SE

6
0

7
9

94

90

88
92

98

96

6

7

33
4

18

30

25

75

104

11

6

15

21

9

19

POR
LO

CK AVENUE

11

14

8

3

87

15

1
1

5
3

9

1
5

99

62

85

54

4

35

7

5
1

LB

PO

GAR
DENS

1
1

1
8

8

2
2

5
9

1
5

K
IN

G
S

W
A

Y

2

73

S
c

ho
o

l

3
3

3
7

1

77

2
9

3
2

3
0

65

Churc h

2
5

1
7

1
1

1
5

1
1

2
1

2
3

2
3

1

61

5666

70

3
4

3
2

75
65

1
2

2
2

4
5

Sub Sta

4
9

1
6

3
5

El

3
3

28

1
1

30

M
A

N
N

E
R

IN
G

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S

1
5

115

35

30

5

111

S
T

 JA
M

E
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S

1
6

3
0

4
2

11111111111111111111111112222222222222222222222222

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

Resident permit holders only (Zone_H)

Pedestrian Crossing

Keep Clear Entrance Marking

PMS Areas Mon-Fri 9.30am-4.30pm Hospital
PMS (Zone H)

Unrestricted Bay

Mon-Fri 9.30am-4.30pm
Limited waiting Mon-Fri 9.30am-4.30pm
30mins no return within 4hrs

except buses

2 Wheel Parking

No stopping Mon-Fri 8am-9.30am and
2.30pm-4.30pm on entrance markings

24hr Clearway

No stopping except buses

Bus Stand No stopping Mon-Fri 7am-7pm

Mon-Fri 9.30am-4.30pm

Payment Parking Mon-Fri 9.30am-4.30pm
(Tariff_7)

Business permit holders only (Zone_H)
Mon-Fri 9.30am-4.30pm

No stopping at any time except taxis

No waiting at any time

No waiting

No loading at any time

Disabled badge holders only

Limited waiting

Resident permit holders only (Zone_H)

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

 

Selected map area

20/08/2018

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material

with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the

Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown

Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown

copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil

proceedings. 

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council 

Licence No: 100019680 2016

HOSPITAL AREA CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE - BAY LOCATION PLAN

*************************

1 : 3200

63



This page is intentionally left blank



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Report of Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

to
Traffic and Parking Working Party and 

Cabinet Committee
on

13th September 2018

Report prepared by: Peter Geraghty
Director for Planning and Transport 

Holland Road Area - Permit Parking Proposal
Cabinet Member : Cllr Moring 

A Part 1 Public Agenda Item

1. Purpose of Report

1.1.1 For the Traffic and Parking Working Party and the Cabinet Committee to 
consider the results of a consultation led by residents in Holland Road and 
Palmeira Avenue.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Traffic and Parking Working Party consider the results 
presented and recommend to the Cabinet Committee to:

(a) Thank the residents for taking the time to undertake the surveys.
 

(b) Agree to a proposal for a Permit Parking Area to be introduced into 
the streets by extending the Cliffs Pavilion Permit Parking Area.

(b) Authorise the advertisement of the proposals and further authorise 
that in the event of there being no unresolved objections, confirm the 
Order as necessary and undertake the works.

 
(c) Note that any unresolved objections will be referred to a future 
meeting for consideration.

2. Background

3.1 At a meeting attended by officers and Members, local residents expressed 
concerns over the level of parking in Holland Road and Palmeira Avenue.  
The roads appear be used by commuters, seafront visitors and theatre 
customers, often displacing residents and increasing traffic as motorists 
attempt to find a parking space.

3.2 Members and officers provided information on the level of support required, 
questions residents should be asked and offered to analyse all results 
received.

3.3 Residents have delivered a questionnaire to all properties in Holland Road 
and Palmeira Avenue and received responses equating to 70% of those 

Agenda
Item No.

65

10



asked.  After analysis, the results show 92% of residents responding are in 
support of parking controls.  

3.4 As the level of support has reached the set criteria, officers recommend the 
proposals be formally advertised but the area should also include Station 
Road from San Remo Parade to Holland Road within the proposals.  
Residents of this particular section of Station Road have expressed their 
concerns that they are not part of the existing Permit Parking Area and not 
eligible to purchase permits.  Including this area will resolve this and provide 
additional parking availability for all residents.

3.5 Station Road is currently subject to waiting restrictions which prohibit parking 
at any time in some areas and from 9am to 6pm in the remaining areas.  The 
road is sufficiently wide at 9.3 to 9.8 metres to accommodate parking on one 
side of the road as well as two way traffic flows. This measure will also 
contribute to reducing speeds in the street.

3.6 The streets are close to the existing Cliffs Pavilion Permit Parking Area with 
streets further westwards providing little on street parking availability due to 
the presence of driveways.  These streets are unlikely to suffer with any 
displaced parking due to the numbers of driveways.  Shorefield Road, sited 
between the existing Permit Parking Area and Palmeira Avenue has been 
subject to a prohibition of waiting for a considerable number of years and as 
such, is unaffected.

4. Reasons for Recommendations 

4.1 To reflect the residents request and subsequent success in demonstrating 
support for parking controls.

Corporate Implications

5.1 Contribution to Council’s Vision & Corporate Priorities.

5.1.1 Ensuring parking is managed to the maximum benefit is consistent with the 
Council’s Vision and Corporate Priorities of Safe, Prosperous and Healthy.

5.2 Financial Implications

5.2.1 Costs for progression of the works if approved, can be met from existing 
budgets.

5.3 Legal Implications

5.3.1 The formal statutory consultative process will be completed in accordance 
with the requirements of the legislation.

5.4 People Implications

5.4.1 Works required to progress the proposals and any resulting works will be 
undertaken by existing staff resources.

66



5.5 Property Implications

5.5.1 None

5.6 Consultation

5.6.1 This report requests authority to commence the statutory consultation process 
and is a direct result of a resident led consultation demonstrating support for 
parking controls.

5.7 Equalities and Diversity Implications

5.7.1 Parking controls ensure management of any parking availability along with 
maintaining safety for all road users.  

5.8 Risk Assessment

5.8.1 The proposals will be designed to improve the operation of the parking 
scheme while maintaining highway safety and traffic flow and as such, are 
likely to have a positive impact.

5.9 Value for Money

5.9.1 Works associated with the proposal will be undertaken by the Council’s term 
contractors, selected through a competitive tendering process to ensure 
value for money.

5.10 Community Safety Implications

5.10.1 The proposals if implemented will lead to improved community safety by 
reducing non-resident parking and giving residents the opportunity to park 
near to their homes.

5.11 Environmental Impact

5.11.1 There is no significant environmental impact as a result of introducing the 
Traffic Regulation Orders.

6. Background Papers

6.1 None

7. Appendices

7.1 Appendix 1 - Details of affected streets and results of the informal 
consultation. 
Appendix 2 – plan of proposed area to be incorporated into the existing 
Permit Parking Area. 

67



68



Appendix 1

Details of streets consulted and responses

Road No of 
Properties

No. 
returned

Percentage 
returned

No in 
support

No. 
opposed

Percentage 
in support

Holland Road* 200 100 50% 99 1 99%
Palmeira 
Avenue

50 44 88% 41 3 
abstained 

86%

*Includes 130 occupied properties in Homecove House

69



This page is intentionally left blank



Cliffs Pavilion

P
o
nd

Shelter

Cottage

San Remo Mansions

17

S
A

N
 R

E
M

O
 P

A
R

A
D

E

1

1 to 8

The

5

WICKFORD ROAD

1

4

R
E
T
R

E
A
T
 R

O
A

D

16

2

19a

23

8

17

9

11

19
15

Heights

Pavilion

19

27

15

19

11

1 to 6

Lodge

21

Doric

LY
D

FO
R

D
 R

O
A

D

1

13

5

M
IL

T
O

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E

3

22

1

4

14

42

3

STATION ROAD

Car Park

34

S
u

rg
er

y

Milton Court

1 to 9

51

5

5

6

El

52 to 80

Sub Sta

Waters Edge

4
4
 t
o
 5

0

1

63

80

Mellor House

1a

86

82

PC

SHOREFIELD GARDENS

1

1

4
2

2
0 to

Shelter

SP

69

79

Cottage

SL
MP

1The

4 3 2

Shops

5

SHOREFIELD ROAD

6

Court

4

Palmeira

116

10
4

1

6

10
6

TCB

LEONARD ROAD

P
a

lm
e

ir
a

14

1
9

P
A

LM
E
IR

A
 A

V
E

N
U

E

11

1
 to

 7

M
a
n

s
io

n
s

89

7

20

11

H
O

LL
A

N
D

 R
O

A
D

144

134

10

1
4

2

130

6

2

146

21

29

House

Homecove

23

30

36

PC

TCB

LB

SL

Cycle Way

Sloping masonry

Crowstone court

Sloping masonry

2
6

24
2
8

172

3
0

26

1 to 10

50

B
lo

ck
 D

Block C

48

T
an

k

1 
to

 1
0

4

House

1 to 10

Fn

Block B

Argyll

33

29

14

29a

186
190

10
8

11
0

112 114
118

120

2

1
4

0

1
3

8

170

148

150168

1
8

2
1
8

4

Residents Permit

Parking (Zone CP)

11am-9pm

Residents Permit

Parking (Zone CP)

11am-9pm

No stopping except

taxis

No waiting 8am-6pm

Payment Parking

No waiting 9am-9pm

Limited waiting

9am-6pm 1hr no return

within 4hrs

Disabled badge

holders only

No waiting Mon-Fri

8am-5pm

No waiting 9am-9pm

Payment Parking

Payment parking

(Zone_SF) 9am-6pm

(Tariff_5)

Payment parking

(Zone_SF) 9am-6pm

(Tariff_5)

Payment parking

(Zone_SF) 9am-6pm

(Tariff_5)

Limited waiting

9am-6pm 2hrs no return

within 4hrs

Loading only

Payment parking

(Zone_SF) 9am-6pm

(Tariff_5)

Payment parking

(Zone_SF) 9am-6pm

(Tariff_5)

No stopping except

taxis 7pm-midnight and

midnight-7am

Limited waiting 1hr

no return within 4hrs

Residents Permit Zone

(Zone CP-1) 11am-9pm

Residents Permit

Parking (Zone CP)

11am-9pm

Residents Permit

Parking (Zone CP)

11am-9pm

Proposed Permit Area (p)

SCALE

DATE

MAP

@ A3

REVISION

ppppppppp

qqqqqqqqq

uuuuuuuuuttttttttt This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey

material with the permission of Ordnance Survey

on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty 's

Stationery Office (c) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright

and may lead to prosecution or c iv il proceedings.

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council

Licence Number 100019680

Ù
N

NOTE: SEE MAP SCHEDULE LEGEND FOR RESTRICTIONS DISPLAYED

Plan Showing the Location of Palmeira Avenue,

 Holland Road and Station Road for Inclusion in

CP1 Zone

Selected map area

22/08/2018

1 : 1000

*************************

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material

with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the

Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown

Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown

copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil

proceedings. 

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council 

Licence No: 100019680 2016

71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report Title Page 1 of 8 Report Number

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council

Report of Deputy Chief Executive (Place)

to
Traffic and Parking Working Party and Cabinet 

Committee
on

13th September 2018

Report prepared by: Peter Geraghty, 
Director for Planning and Transport

Oakwood Avenue
Request for Speed Control and Other Suggested Amendments 

to the Road Layout.
Cabinet Member: Councillor Moring

Part 1 Public Agenda Item 

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 For the Traffic and Parking Working Party and the Cabinet Committee to consider 
a petition from residents of Oakwood Avenue requesting measures to reduce the 
levels of traffic using the road and to reduce the current speed limit to 20mph. 

2. Recommendation

2.1. That the Traffic and Parking Working Party and the Cabinet Committee:-

a) Thank the petitioner for taking the time to compile the petition and;

b) Agree the findings of the investigation and take no further action in 
regard to the request for a 20mph speed limit to be introduced at this 
time.

c) Agree to take no further action in regard to the other requested works.

3. Background

3.1 Oakwood Avenue is street running from the A127 to Eastwood Road North and is 
approximately 315 metres in length.  

3.2 The street is subject to a speed limit of 30mph and this is signposted at the 
junction of the A127 to advise motorists they are leaving a 40mph speed limit.  A 
sign facing motorists leaving Oakwood Avenue to enter the A127 and a 40mph 
sign limit is also provided along with a sign advising motorists they are entering a 
street subject to a no stopping requirement (clearway).  .

3.3 The speed limit signage is currently positioned beneath signage advising that a 
clearway starts and ends, to maximise the presence of a speed limit sign, these 
should be positioned at the uppermost of any signage array.  

Agenda
Item No.

73

11



Report Title Page 2 of 8 Report Number

3.4 The street comprises residential properties, the majority of which have off street 
parking provision.  The street is also an access to Leighwood Avenue Briarwood 
Drive and Shirley Road.  

3.5 Line markings are provided at the junctions of Briarwood Drive (2 approaches) 
and Shirley Road advising motorists that they are required to give way to traffic 
on Oakwood Avenue.  

3.6 Monitoring equipment was installed in the street from 27th July 2018 until 8th 
August 2018.  The equipment records all vehicle movements, lengths and 
speeds continuously while in position. 

3.7 It should be noted that south to north traffic flow figures are highly likely to be 
distorted as motorists attempt to avoid the Kent Elms junction to access the 
London Bound carriageway during ongoing works.  

3.7 The equipment recorded the following information during the monitoring period;

36,481 vehicle movements 
29,688 movements northbound
6,513   movements southbound

3040 average vehicle movements per day

Average speeds of 24mph

12% of vehicles exceeding 30mph 
7.4% of vehicles travelling between 30mph and 32mph
2.6% of vehicles travelling between 33mph and 34 mph 
2.1% of vehicles travelling in excess of 35mph (enforceable limit)

3.8 The monitoring has identified that the number of vehicles using the street each 
day is higher than expected however, this is believed to be due to the numbers of 
motorists attempting to avoid Kent Elms junction during works.  Monitoring 
undertaken in January 2014 identified average vehicle movements of 1885 per 
day.  

3.9 Speeds have reduced since the monitoring in 2014 when average speeds of 
27mph and 35% of vehicles travelling over 30mph were recorded.  While current 
speeds are undesirable, this is not excessively high in comparison to other street 
monitored this calendar year.

3.10 As part of the investigation, collision data was analysed.  Members are aware 
that collisions resulting in personal injury are recorded with the attending Police 
Officer providing an assessment of the road conditions, any driver related issues 
or any other information they feel is likely to have contributed to the collision 
occurring. 

3.11 Since 1st April 2015 to 1st April 2018 (the data currently available), 3 collisions 
have occurred resulting in personal injury. The details of these collisions are 
described below along with the attending officers observations and comments as 

74



Report Title Page 3 of 8 Report Number

to likely cause.  Speed has not been considered as a contributory factor as to the 
cause of these collisions. 

3.11 As speed has not been considered as contributing to any of the collisions 
detailed, lowering the current speed limit would have little beneficial impact on 
reducing collisions.

3.12 The data gathered shows that the majority of vehicles are travelling at or under 
the speed limit with a low percentage (in comparison to other streets in the 
borough) exceeding this speed at a level the Police would take action against.

3.13 Our remedial budgets are targeted at those locations where collisions resulting in 
injury are recorded and where engineering measures will reduce the likelihood of 
similar collisions occurring.  Where a location features three collisions likely to 
have caused by three distinct factors, it is difficult to identify what measures are 
appropriate and whether the implementation of these will result in a benefit. 

3.14 The collisions have resulted from error on the part of the driver in two of the 
instances with an unavoidable situation occurring to cause the third collision, a 
reduced speed limit is unlikely to have prevented these collisions occurring.

3.15 Reduced speeds can result in reduced collisions as drivers may have additional 
time to react accordingly with any resulting collisions likely to result in lesser 
injury, however, dealing with a single street in isolation is unlikely to achieve 
widespread benefit.  

3.16 Monitoring of speeds throughout the borough is undertaken on a request basis, 
details of the streets monitored so far this calendar year are provided in Appendix 
1 to this report and highlights the number of street where speeds are travelled in 
excess of the speed limit.

3.17 To provide speed reducing measures in this street ahead of other areas where 
higher speeds are evidenced results in no fair and transparent system of 
addressing these issues.  It is therefore suggested that in the event of Members 
wish to address speeding issues, a ranking list of streets with evidenced 
speeding issues along with the related collision data and an estimated cost to 

Date Location Description Contributory Factors

25/03/2015
Oakwood Avenue 
near Shirley Road 

Vehicle on Oakwood Avenue 
turning into Shirley Road strikes 
pedestrian crossing on Shirley 
Road

Vehicle failed to judge 
pedestrians path 

27/03/2017

Oakwood Avenue 
near junction with 
Eastwood Road 
North

Vehicle travelling south, swerves 
to avoid an animal, hits the kerb 
flipping vehicle and hits two 
parked vehicles.

swerving to avoid animal on 
carriageway

01/12/2017

Briarwood Drive 
junction with 
Oakwood Avenue

vehicle exiting Briarwood Drive 
fails to give way to vehicle 
travelling on Oakwood Avenue failing/disobeying give way 

75



Report Title Page 4 of 8 Report Number

introduce speed reducing measures is prepared.  The list can then be considered 
on a priority ranking basis and capital funding sought to address this issue.  

3.18 It is therefore recommended to take no further action in relation to a reduced 
speed limit at this location pending the compilation of a priority ranking list being 
created and requisite funding being available.

3.19 Officers will rearrange the signage array at the junction with the A127 to place the 
speed limit signage appropriately.  

3.20 The petitioner has also requested the following measures/combination of 
measures;

1. A keep left bollard at the junction of Eastwood Road North. 
2. Width restrictions to prevent large vehicles using the road.
3. Make the road no entry from Eastwood Road North.
4. Close the road at the junction with the A127.
5. Extend the existing yellow lines from the A127 to Briarwood Drive to protect 

the S bend.

3.21 Officers have considered these requests and have the following observations;

1. There is no evidence to suggest vehicles are making dangerous manoeuvres 
at this location (cutting across the junction) and therefore littler benefit could 
be achieved by this measure.

2. There is no indication that excessive numbers of large vehicles are using the 
road.  The monitoring showed 80 large vehicles using the road (0.2%) 
whereas in 2014, 1359 long vehicles were recorded (9%) which evidences a 
reduction in the use of the road by large vehicles.  

3. Making the road no entry would require residents to use either the A127 to 
access the road or utilise other residential streets to access their properties, 
this would increase vehicle movements in adjacent streets.  

4. This measure would require residents to utilise other streets to access the 
A127 therefore increasing vehicle movements in adjacent streets.  

5. The existing yellow lines currently extend from the junction of the A127 to 
Shirley Road a distance of approximately 80 metres. No accidents are 
recorded in this section of the street.  The bend is not extreme and provides a 
natural traffic calming feature, removing parking from this area could result in 
higher speeds.

3.22. The Department for Transport (DfT) are yet to release their findings as to the 
reduction of speed limits in urban areas.  Members are reminded that an In-
Depth Scrutiny Project undertaken in 2016 and designed to consider a borough 
wide reduced speed limits in the majority of residential streets deferred any 
decision pending the outcome of the DfT’s work.

76



Report Title Page 5 of 8 Report Number

3.22 In conclusion, there are concerns related to vehicle movements and speeds 
travelled however, traffic patterns are highly likely to be affected by ongoing 
works at Kent Elms junction and to react at this time may not be justified as these 
patterns may well change once works are completed.  The DfT may also 
consider measures to reduce speeds nationwide and it is recommended that no 
action be taken at this time to reduce the speed limit and provide traffic calming 
measures.

4.      Other Options  

4.1 Agree to all or some of the requested measures.  Making changes to a road 
layout or reducing the speed should be considered in the context of the benefits 
and dis-benefits.  How does the financial costs to implement such measures 
compare to costs being incurred due to collisions, traffic delays or other factors.  
Any resulting negative impact on adjacent streets or areas should also be a 
factor.  Road amendments carried out on an individual basis does not remove the 
issue but merely moves it the next street or area.  

5 Reasons for Recommendations

5.1 To ensure any action is appropriate to the issue and results in a beneficial impact 
without negatively impacting on adjacent streets.

6.     Corporate Implications

6.1 Contribution to Council’s Vision & Corporate Priorities

6.1.1 Ensure the highway network is effectively managed contributing to a Safe and 
Prosperous Southend.

6.2 Financial Implications

6.2.1 The source of funding for minor maintenance will be from allocated budgets, 
where funding is provided from alternative budgets, this is highlighted as 
appropriate.

6.3 Legal Implications

6.3.1 None if the recommendation is agreed.  

6.4 People Implications

6.4.1 Staff time will be required to organise the maintenance. 

6.5 Property Implications

6.5.1 None

6.6 Consultation

6.6.1 None.

77



Report Title Page 6 of 8 Report Number

6.7 Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.7.1 Any highway maintenance is provided for the benefit of all road users and takes 
account of all users of the public highway including those with disabilities.

6.8 Risk Assessment

6.8.1 The requests have been assessed against collision data and vehicle monitoring 
data.  

6.9 Value for Money

6.9.1 All highway works are undertaken by term contractors appointed through a 
competitive tendering process.

6.10 Community Safety Implications

6.10.1 The requests were assessed against collision and monitoring data.     

6.11 Environmental Impact

6.11.1 None, however, should the recommendation not be agreed and Members decide 
to proceed with speed reduction measures, increased congestion and pollution 
can be increased by reducing speeds.  

7. Background papers

None

8. Appendices

List of streets monitored during the preceding 12 months.

78



Report Title Page 7 of 8 Report Number

Appendix 1 

Road Number of vehicles % exceeding limit

St Laurence Way * 154294 57.00%
Eastern Esplanade/Thorpe Esp 109345 55.40%
Marine Parade, Leigh 52699 35.60%
Gravel Road 17081 35.00%
Hampton Gardens 8015 29.90%
The Fairway 184343 28.40%
Central Avenue 34922 26.20%
Hornby Avenue 12023 24.80%
Priory Crescent 48612 24.10%
Kings Road 48927 22.80%
The Fairway 129316 21.80%
Kings Road 49687 21.30%
Royston Avenue 33491 21.20%
Marlborough Road 6401 17.00%
Nelson Road, Leigh 42543 16.20%
Leighwood Avenue 10686 15.70%
Rutland Avenue 5981 15.20%
Poynters Lane 74489 14.90%
Manchester Drive 42406 13.10%
Oakwood Avenue 36481 12.70%
Scratton Road 36822 11.60%
Cambridge road 36907 11.50%
Maldon Road 5977 11.40%
Eastwood Rise 29693 11.10%
Marine Parade, Leigh 42315 10.30%
Cranleigh Drive 17035 10.00%
Hampton Gardens 13915 10.00%
Hamstel Road 160404 9.90%
Marguerite Drive 5006 9.00%
Leigh Hall Road 13294 8.90%
Rochester Drive 15956 8.80%
Argyll Road 9167 8.00%
Poynings avenue 33388 7.60%
Midhurst Avenue 14685 7.50%
Colemans Avenue 16503 7.20%
Picketts Ave 3850 6.50%

79



Report Title Page 8 of 8 Report Number

Baxter Avenue 12561 6.20%
St Johns Road 7211 5.70%
Royston Avenue 36598 5.30%
Richmond Drive 3435 5.00%
London Road 184733 4.30%
Kensington Road 7104 3.90%
Glendale Gardens 23427 3.30%
Southsea Avenue 11110 2.10%
Wells Avenue 7400 2.10%
Glenhurst Road 5309 1.80%
Broadway 117572 1.70%
Lymington Avenue 4262 1.40%
Grand Parade 85521 0.90%
Blyth Avenue 5455 0.70%
Fairview Drive/Thear Close 4028 0.50%
Cambridge road 28695 0.40%
Henley Crescent 1606 0.10%
Thornford Gardens 10846 0.00%
Thornford Gardens 3881 0.00%
Hadleigh Road - south section from Leigh 
Park 1754 0.00%

 St Laurence Way figures potentially due to an appropriate speed limit.  No 
properties and minimal pedestrian traffic gives the indication it is a higher 
speed limit than 30mph.

80



Report Title Page 1 of 5 Report Number

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council

Report of Deputy Chief Executive (Place)
to

Traffic and Parking Working Party and Cabinet 
Committee

on
13th September 2018 

Report prepared by: Peter Geraghty, 
Director for Planning and Transport

Requests for Waiting Restrictions
Cabinet Member: Councillor Moring

Part 1 Public Agenda Item 

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 For the Traffic and Parking Working Party and the Cabinet Committee to 
authorise the advertisement of the amendments and/or new restrictions/traffic 
Regulation Orders in accordance with the statutory processes.

2. Recommendation

2.1. That the Traffic and Parking Working Party and the Cabinet Committee:-

a) Consider the requests to advertise the requisite Traffic Regulation 
Orders as shown in appendix 1;

b) If approved, further agree that in the event of there being no objections 
to the proposals, the proposal will be added to the existing work 
programme and the Traffic Regulation Order be confirmed;

c) Note that all unresolved objections will be referred to the Traffic and 
Parking Working Party for consideration.

3. Background

3.1 Requests for new or amendments to existing waiting or traffic restrictions are 
regularly received from residents and the businesses as well as officer and 
Member suggestions.

3.2 All requests are assessed and investigated against the policy criterion agreed 
criteria by the Cabinet Committee in January 2016.

4. Other Options

4.1 Each request needs to be considered on its individual merits and their impact on 
public safety, traffic flows or parking and wider impact on the surrounding 

Agenda
Item No.

81

12



Report Title Page 2 of 5 Report Number

network.  Members may consider taking no further action if they feel it is 
appropriate.

5. Reasons for Recommendations

5.1 Where recommended the objective is to mitigate for likelihood of traffic flows 
being impeded, to improve safety or increase parking availability.

6. Corporate Implications

6.1 Contribution to Council’s Vision & Corporate Priorities

6.1.1 Ensure the highway network is effectively managed contributing to a Safe and 
Prosperous Southend.

6.2 Financial Implications

6.2.1 Where recommended, the source of funding will be from allocated budgets, 
where funding is provided from alternative budgets, this is highlighted as 
appropriate.

6.3 Legal Implications

6.3.1 The formal statutory consultative process will be completed in accordance with 
the requirements of the legislation where applicable.

6.4 People Implications

6.4.1 Staff time will be prioritised as needed to investigate, organise the advertisement 
procedures and monitor the progress of the proposals based on the committee 
priorities.

6.5 Property Implications

6.5.1 None

6.6 Consultation

6.6.1 Formal consultation will be undertaken including advertisement of the proposal in 
the local press and on the street as appropriate.

6.7 Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.7.1 The objectives of improving safety takes account of all users of the public 
highway including those with disabilities.

6.8 Risk Assessment

6.8.1 Neutral.

82



Report Title Page 3 of 5 Report Number

6.9 Value for Money

6.9.1 All works resulting from the scheme design are to be undertaken by term 
contractors appointed through a competitive tendering process.

6.10 Community Safety Implications

6.10.1 All proposals are designed to maximise community safety through design, 
implementation and monitoring.

6.11 Environmental Impact

6.11.1 All proposals are designed and implemented to ensure relevant environmental 
benefits are attained through the use of appropriate materials and electrical 
equipment to save energy and contribute towards the Carbon Reduction targets 
where appropriate.

7. Background papers

None

8. Appendices

Appendix 1 – List of requests and comments

83



Report Title Page 4 of 5 Report Number

84



Report Title Page 5 of 5 Report Number

APPENDIX 1 – TRO CHANGES/WAITING RESTRICTIONS REQUESTS 

Location Request 
Details

Request
ed By

Relevant 
Criteria 
Points

Officer comments

Town Centre 
Controlled 
Parking Zone

Amend existing 
waiting 
restrictions and 
loading bays to 
create additional 
pay and display 
parking.

Officers NA Following development of a number of 
premises within the town centre area, 
there is an opportunity to review 
existing areas of waiting restrictions 
and loading facilities to create 
additional pay and display parking.  
 
Recommend to advertise proposals.

Old School 
Court

Propose waiting 
restrictions in 
turning area 

Officers Planning 
consent 
requirement 
prior to 
adoption as 
publicly 
maintainable 
highway.

Works to prohibit parking at the dead 
end of the cul-de-sac prior to adoption 
of the street in accordance with the 
planning consent granted.  All works 
are to be funded by the developer.  

Recommend that the proposal be 
advertised.

85



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on Thursday 21st June 2018
	Minutes

	4 Minutes of the Meeting held on Thursday, 5th July, 2018
	5 Objections to Traffic Regulation Orders
	6 Members Requests List
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	7 Extension of Cliffs Pavilion Permit Parking Area
	Plan

	8 Request for Waiting Restrictions - Earls Hall Avenue
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Petition - Parking Restrictions - Earls Hall Avenue_Page_1
	Petition - Parking Restrictions - Earls Hall Avenue_Page_2


	9 Hospital Area Controlled Parking Zone
	Appendix 2

	10 Holland Road Area - Permit Parking Proposal
	Appendix 2

	11 Oakwood Avenue - Request for Speed Control and Other Suggested Amendments to the Road Layout
	12 Requests for Waiting Restrictions

